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LOVE LIFE, LIVE LIFE
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Vision exsxmEs e

To become Asia’s best-in-class integrator of the movie entertainment industry
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Mission #xsfuER

To inspire and enrich life by bringing our customers to tk
beyond imagination through excellent movie experience,
seeking maximisation of shareholders’ value.
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Strategy exzxnmE

In line with the waterfall of revenue split, we adopt a strategy of bottom up
approach in our priority of development according to the following order:

REBTEDRORE  SERUTHIEFEAREERNRREENRE:
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i. Enlarge and strengthen our theatrical exhibition network, i.e. the distribution cha
MAHEREEN BT REEE R HAES

2. Integrate with our distribution business to enhance synergy
DGR TR & SR B RO B A TR TS LA TE B KA o R AR e

3. Participate with minimal risks production which in turn benefits our disté
exhibition business
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Value gxsFxmEE

Responsible p
for the maximisation of shareholders’ value and the
betterment of society with the highest principles L

HIRHIRE ERBESA HHeAR BARERE

Effective :
execution of business strategy with con5|stency

TR BARFEER

Compliant
to rules and internal regulations with diligence

EERAE BARETHT

Committed
to the development of film industry with passion
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

EERDEMEEANEBE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu")

Aged 49

Mr. Wu is the chairman, executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company, and currently a director of Orange Sky Entertainment
Group (International) Holding Company Limited (“OSEG") and its
subsidiaries. OSEG, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and being a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was founded by Mr. Wu in 2004 and is principally engaged in music and
musical production, artist management and advertising business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr. Wu is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. With regard to film, Mr. Wu acted
respectively as executive producer of the two Chinese films Red Cliff and
The Warlords, as well as producer of other Chinese titles including Call for
Love, I am Liu Yuejin and Dangerous Games. In addition, Mr. Wu has been
involved in high technology and telecommunications businesses since the
1990s. Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from the SOKA University Japan in 1992. Mr. Wu joined the
Company in October 2007 and is the brother of Ms. Wu Keyan, an
executive director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Mao Yimin (“Mr. Mao”)

Aged 35

Mr. Mao is an executive director and has been employed by the Company
as its chief financial officer (“CFO") since 6 May 2011 and has been
appointed as its chief executive officer (“CEQ") since 1 August 2011. Mr.
Mao ceased to hold the office of the CFO of the Company since 1 January
2012, and remained as the CEO. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Before joining the Company, Mr. Mao was a senior
manager at KPMG Advisory (China) Limited (“KPMG"), specialised in
transaction services and risk management. Mr. Mao has extensive
investment advisory and industry-related experience, particularly in
manufacturing, retail, media and real estate. Prior to joining KPMG, Mr.
Mao served for large Australian Securities Exchange listed companies,
where he had built up strong statutory reporting, financial analysis, and
risk control and merger and acquisition experience. Mr. Mao graduated
from the University of New South Wales in Australia with a master degree
of commerce in 2003 and he is also a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

EERDEMEEABE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pei Sen (“Mr. Li")

Aged 65

Mr. Li joined the Company as a non-executive director in March 2009 and
was re-designated as an executive director of the Company in April 2010.
He is also the associate chairman of OSEG. Mr. Li was an associate director
of China TV Production Centre in 1994 and the general manager of China
Central Television in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Li joined China International
Television Corporation (“TVC") as president and was involved in its
corporate structuring. During his presidency at TVC, Mr. Li was also in
charge of television production, as well as the domestic and global
licensing business of Chinese television programmes. Prior to joining OSEG
as the associate chairman, Mr. Li served as the director of China TV
Production Centre in 2000. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in film
and television series production and acted as the producer of more than a
thousand episodes of television series, including a number of popular and
high audience rating titles such as All men are brothers: blood of the
leopard, Taiping Heavenly Kingdom, Vernacular stories from the end of
Western Zhou Dynasty to the Qin Dynasty and The story of Hongkong and
cartoon series Journey to the West. In addition, Mr. Li is also a committee
member of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, a council
member of China TV Workers’ Association, the vice-president of China TV,
Film Productions Committee, a member of the censorship expert
committee of State Administration of Radio, Film and Television, and a
consultant to TVC.

Ms. Wu Keyan (“Ms. Wu")

Aged 41

Ms. Wu is an executive director of the Company. She was re-designated as
an executive director on 9 September 2010 and prior to that, she had
been an alternate director to Mr. Wu since January 2008. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wu has been a senior
manager of the Administration and Human Resources Department of the
Group since 1 January 2008 and is responsible for the administrative
management of the Company’s head office in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Ms. Wu has served in various corporations in Japan and Hong Kong and is
currently the deputy general manager of Holdrich Investment Limited, a
company specialising in telecommunications, semiconductor and
technology-related businesses. Ms. Wu graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in Business Management from the Faculty of Commerce at
Takushyoku University in Japan in 1996. Ms. Wu is the sister of Mr. Wu.

Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon (“Mr. Tan")

Aged 44

Mr. Tan was appointed as an executive director and acting chief operations
officer of the Company (“Acting COO") on 23 August 2010. Mr. Tan
manages the Company'’s operations in Taiwan, and is the general manager
of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd., a Taiwan incorporated company which is
owned as to 35.71% by the Company, and the general manager of Vie
Vision Pictures Co. Ltd., a Taiwan incorporated company in which the
Company holds 23.21% indirect interest. Mr. Tan is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Company in 2001 as a
general manager, exhibition. Prior to that, he had worked with Golden
Village Multiplex Pte Ltd, a company which is owned as to 50% by the
Company, since 1992. Mr. Tan holds a master’s degree in business
administration in Nanyang Technological University’s Nanyang Fellows
Program. He graduated from Western lllinois University with a bachelor’s
degree in business with majors in finance and economics.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

EERDEMEEANEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Kit Michael (“Mr. Leung”)

Aged 59

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director, and the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since February 2008 and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company since 26 March 2012. Mr. Leung
obtained a bachelor’s degree in social science from the University of Hong
Kong in 1977 and has over 25 years of experience in project finance and
corporate finance. He has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital
(China) Limited, SG Securities (HK) Limited (previously known as Crosby
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited), Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Leung was also a director of Emerging Markets Partnership
(Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the AIG
Infrastructure Fund L.P.

Mr. Leung serves as an independent non-executive director of NetEase,
Inc., a NASDAQ listed company. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Ting Group Holdings Limited, Junefield
Department Store Group Limited and China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited;
and as an executive director of Chanceton Financial Group Limited, all of
which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Huang Shao-Hua George (“Mr. Huang")

Aged 64

Mr. Huang has been an independent non-executive director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company since November 2006. Mr. Huang
graduated from the College of Telecommunications Engineering, National
Chiao-Tung University in Taiwan in 1971, and co-founded the Acer Group
in 1976. He has been heavily involved in the development of
microprocessor technology applications and services and was the first
person in Taiwan to promote and sell microcomputers to international
markets in 1979. Mr. Huang is presently a supervisor of Acer Inc., Motech
Co., Ltd, and Les Enphants Co., Ltd., which are all public companies in
Taiwan. He was distinguished as an honoured graduate of National Chiao-
Tung University in Taiwan in 1996.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong")

Aged 34

Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 26 April 2010. She has been appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of nomination committee since 26 March 2012. Ms. Wong has over ten
years of accounting experience in the profession. She is the deputy chief
financial officer and joint company secretary of Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited which is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite
Index. Ms. Wong was previously employed as the group chief financial
officer of OSEG. She was also previously employed as the financial
controller of Avex China Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company
established by OSEG and Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong ceased to be the group chief financial
officer of OSEG and financial controller of Avex China Company Limited in
January 2008. She was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong. She also
obtained an EMBA from the China Europe International Business School.
Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2003.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

EERDEMEEABE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yuen Kwok On (“Mr. Yuen”)

Aged 47

Mr. Yuen has joined the Company since October 1996 and has in-depth
knowledge of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition,
Mr. Yuen has extensive experience in financial analysis, risk control and
mergers and acquisitions. Prior to his appointment as the CFO of the
Company, Mr. Yuen is the deputy CFO and the company secretary of the
Company. He is a member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a master’s degree of
business administration from Hong Kong Baptist University.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

For eight consecutive years since its inception, the Group’s flagship cinema
in Shenzhen has maintained its top-three positions in the country’s gross
box office receipts with a total admission of over 8.5 million. Gross box
office receipts were approximately RMB450 million, ranking the top in the
accumulated box office receipts in Mainland China. OSGH Cinemas
Shenzhen set another record in 2012 and ranked second among the top
yielding stand-alone cinemas across the country with box office receipts of
approximately RMB78 million.

In September 2012, the Group established the first flagship cinema with
IMAX theatre in the Tianjin Galaxy International Shopping Centre. In
December 2012, the second OSGH Cinema with IMAX and big screen was
opened in Changzhou. Meanwhile, the Group has further reinforced the
strategic collaboration with SONY China and took the lead to install the
SONY 4K Projection Systems in our Mainland China multiplexes on a large
scale in order to deliver the best visual entertainment to the audiences.

Leading in Taiwan with market share substantially
increased to 42%

The enthusiasm about movie-going as a lifestyle among the locals and
immense development potential of Mandarin films in Taiwan have
provided our Group with stable and sustainable room for development in
the region. During the year, Vie Show cinema circuits in Taiwan flourished
and the number of admissions and box office receipts both reached record
highs with box office receipts reaching NT$3.4 billion. The two new
cinemas opened by Vie Show in New Taipei City and Taichung towards the
end of 2011 delivered satisfactory performance during the year. Vie Show
also opened the Vie Show Hsin Chu Big City in April 2012 and recorded
impressive box office receipts of NT$3.75 million in the first two days of
operation. As at the end of 2012, Vie Show operated 11 cinemas with a
total of 109 screens. The market share of Vie Show was more than 40%
and it ranked number one in Taiwan. Vie Show continued to contribute
considerable profits to the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRES

Securing its leading market position in Singapore with
a market share of 43%

Similar to Taiwan, Singaporean showed a keen interest in movie viewing.
Following the development of the gambling industry and increase in
number of tourists and immigrants, coupled with the market recognition
of our quality brand, Golden Village, the Group once again achieved
excellent performance in 2012. Our box office receipts in Singapore
reached S$83 million with a market share of 43%. As at the end of 2012,
Golden Village operated 11 cinemas with 87 screens. The Group opened
the eleventh high-end multiplex in the City Square Mall at the end of
2012. At the new multiplex, the Group established a brand new cinema
management system by the innovation and reform of various industrial
technologies, and created a refreshing impression and further
strengthening the leading market position of Golden Village.

Playing a major role in Hong Kong and continuing
steady development

Under the competitive market environment in Hong Kong and escalating
rental payment over the past few years, the Group managed to stay ahead
of the market and realise a profit during the year through management
optimisation and prudent operation. Furthermore, the Group formed an
alliance with D-BOX Technologies Inc., becoming the first cinema in Hong
Kong equipped with Motion Chair D-BOX. This system provides a realistic
immersive experience through the motions of the chairs perfectly
synchronised with onscreen actions. The Group will further consolidate its
persistent position in the Hong Kong market.

Film distribution and film & TV programmes

production business

In 2012, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$110 million
and distributed over 120 films. It also introduced a diversity of movies
including the Oscar best foreign language film of the year A Separation,
foreign action sci-fi films Spy Kids and Lockout, and the Taiwan popular
film The Fierce Wife (JEFIA Z), with gross box office receipts over RMB
70 million in total.

Future development and competitive strengths

Accelerating the pace of cinema development and
refining the strategic layouts across Asia

Looking forward, the Group is optimistic about the future of the film
industry and the territories where we are operating. We are confident of a
sustainable demand for quality films in the future, especially in the Chinese
film market with great market potential and strong consumption. With the
increasing number of imported 3D and IMAX movies, movie viewing will
become a popular leisure activity for the general public. In the future, the
Group will continue to commit more resources to exploring the Mainland
China market, and plans to open flagship multiplexes in tier-1 cities such
as Beijing, Guangzhou, Shanghai and Shenzhen as well as further
strengthen and expand its market share in tier-2 and tier-3 cities, targeting
to become one of the leading cinema operators in Mainland China.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

Besides the Mainland China market, the Group will make steady progress
in developing its business in Singapore, Taiwan and Hong Kong, so as to
penetrate into the market and consolidate its leading position, and
maintain safeguard its overall profitability while expanding rapidly in
Mainland China, producing a synergy effect for Asia business, thus
enhancing overall value of the Group. Moreover, Vie Show is seeking for a
listing on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The Board has agreed
to proceed with the above matter and appointed securities underwriter. It
is expected that the listing would be obtained by the end of 2014 at the
earliest.

Besides continuing in the construction and development of cinemas in
Mainland China for which we have entered into contracts, the Group also
seeks opportunities for the merger and acquisition of cinemas in the Asian
region to accelerate expansion of its market share, optimise business
development, striving to outrun our competitors in the film industry.

Integrating our competitiveness in the industry chain
with steady mid-to-up stream expansion

While we spare no effort in the development of cinema business, the
Group will also integrate the competitive edges of our brand, film library
and exhibition channels to develop the film distribution and production
business steadily so as to further elaborate and consolidate the operation
model of overall movie industry chain in Asia. In 2012, the Group initiated
its remake project for “Orange Sky Golden Harvest Classic Movie Series”
(8 R 3= K& 8 E & & 5| E ), and planed to invest and produce a
number of quality Chinese language TV drama series in the coming few
years. Furthermore, bolstered by the policy that encourages importation of
foreign films into the Chinese film market, the Group will also actively look
for opportunities to cooperate with overseas film producers for project
development.

Developing new cinema business, increasing sources
of profit, enhancing operation through emphasis on
humanism and technology as well as optimising
management and quality of services

The Group has accumulated extensive experience in the management and
operation of cinemas across Asia over the years and is privileged to have a
strong operation team. We have always strived to enhance the quality of
cinema service and offer great movie viewing experience to our audience.
In the future, the Group will continue to introduce more non-movie
contents to cinemas of the Group, including live broadcast of concerts,
sports events and corporate events. In addition to traditional merchandise,
the Group introduced in 2012 “L’oranger”, our own brand of French
desserts , which was well received by customers. The Group will add other
retail products for sale in our cinemas in an effort to build up a new
growth manentom for our business.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRES

Delivering top-notch theatrical experience

The Group always endeavours to deliver high quality audio-visual effects.
By introducing state-of-the-art film exhibition equipment and technologies,
we provide audiences with superb movie viewing experience. In Hong
Kong, the Group formed an alliance with D-BOX Technologies Inc. and
was the first cinema in Hong Kong equipped with Motion Chair D-BOX. In
Taiwan, the Group became the exclusive digital IMAX operator. In
Mainland China, the Group formed the 4K equipment partnership with
SONY. In the future the Group will further develop and increase our effort
in film viewing technologies for new cinema projects.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to expand its cinema networks,
both at home and abroad. We will actively identify merger and acquisition
opportunities in the Asian market, strengthen the movie production and
distribution business, enhance the brand awareness of Orange Sky Golden
Harvest as a prime Chinese movie brand, and eventually achieve the goal
of becoming a leading integrator of the movie entertainment industry
across Asia.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders who share
the Group’s objective and mission to develop the film industry in the
region. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank our colleagues in
elsewhere for their efforts and invaluable contribution to the Group during
the year.
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In 2012, the Group's turnover totalled $1,592 million, an increase of 16%

Net profit attributable to equity holders remained at $96 million

NoZ—arsEgEsemas 1,592 gasn  wmBE 2 2 T/

RRAERA AR 96 HEE T

It was another fruitful year for the Group in 2012. The Group reported a
net profit attributable to equity holders of HK$96 million for the year. The
macro operating environment was challenging this year and the market
conditions in territories we operated were mixed. Although we are facing
increasingly fierce competition in the industry, we manage to achieve our
goal and maintain persistent growth through our prudent operation.

In 2012, the Group's turnover rose by 16% to HK$1.59 billion, among
which revenue from exhibition business increased by 23%, while income
from distribution and production activities declined by 35% as there was
no new TV production. During the year 2012, box office receipts of the
Group's multiplexes in Mainland China boosted by 67% as compared with
last year, box office receipts of Vie Show in Taiwan and Hong Kong's
cinemas both recorded a strong growth of 18% and 11% respectively.
Box office receipts of Golden Village in Singapore showed a slight increase
of 4% despite temporary closure of a cinema for renovation during the
year. Gross margin increased to 60% from 58% of 2011. The Group's
EBITD for the year amounted to HK$240 million (2011: HK$230 million).

R _ERERREBZF - AFEAEEE
BB A5 429,600 8 BT - BEFARE
RERFRMUB . 2EBRTEHRRAZE - XA
BERBAR BEAKERBRELE  NHAED
THEMBR  REFEER -

R-T——F AEEZEEBLR16%E1591E
I e HAA WA EERE 2 RS MN23% » mEEST
MEUEEB ZWMABRREFTHNERREELER
#35%  MN_T——F AEFEEFEAMZEY
BRATEENZRERAREFERHEFA67%  &8EH
EREBEZHANZERERANS B ARBIER18% &
1% - BEFRFNERERGET —XERE =
BEETH  BEZERANESI% EHER -
AEBBERBEFNEH -_T——FWN8% LHAZE
60% * FREFRBIABFAE24BET(ZE——
F:23F8T) -

1 6 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



in the Coming Two Years
K 2 i S BrY o B R 3 B

(Based on signed contracts BIEE R E A E W)

Northern
China Region
#iE

Eastern
China Region

ERE

20 Cinemas / $/3
142 Screens / &

26 Cinemas / /3
182 Screens | R &

MAINLAND CHINA CINEMA NETWORK

Southern
China Region

#HE

Central Western
China Region
PHEE

15 Cinemas / £/
113 Screens / %

17 Cinemas / $/3
134 Screens | R 5

BAERRE (KE)BRATF
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEN WD

During the year 2012, the Group recorded a net gain of HK$4.0 million
(after deductions of related expenses and tax expense) for settlement of
legal dispute on a lease agreement in relation to a cinema project in
Hangzhou. The Group also disposed of certain equity investments and
recorded a gain of HK$7.9 million in 2012. These exceptional gains were
partially offset by a provision of HK$5.3 million for expenses in relation to
the closure of a Hong Kong Cinema, GH Mongkok, in February 2013.

During the year, the Group raised additional bank borrowings of
approximately HK$140 million and spent around HK$290 million on
capital expenditures, mainly for new cinema projects in Mainland China,
Taiwan and Singapore. As of 31 December 2012, cash on hand of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$730 million (2011: HK$710
million). The Group's gearing ratio maintained at a reasonable level of
about 23% as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 20%).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Film Exhibition

During the year 2012, the Group opened 17 cinemas with 123 screens in
total in Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore. As of 31 December 2012,
the Group is operating 70 cinemas with 528 screens across Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore, significantly increased from 53
cinemas with 405 screens a year ago. The Group’s cinemas served
approximately 34.1 million guests during the year, an increase of 16% as
compared to 29.5 million guests last year. Gross box office receipts, on a
full and aggregated basis, was registered at HK$1.98 billion, representing
a 18% growth from last year.

In 2012, the Group's 70 cinemas generated revenue of HK$1.54 billion,
accounting for about 93% of the Group’s total revenue. The major
Hollywood blockbusters released this year were The Avengers, Men in
Black 3, Titanic 3D, The Amazing Spider-Man, The Dark Knight Rises, The
Hobbit: An Unexpected Journey and Life of Pi. The major Chinese-
language blockbusters were Lost in Thailand (A & & # 2 3 ) in
Mainland China, Cold War (%) in Hong Kong, Din Tao: Leader of the
Parade ([ ) in Taiwan and Ah Boys to Men: Part 1 (¥ £ [F {#])in
Singapore.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BERE WKk DM

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP’S CINEMAS
Mainland Hong
China Kong Taiwan Singapore
Number of cinemas* 42 6 " 1"
Number of screens* 306 26 109 87
Admissions (million) 8.3 29 13.9 9.1
Net average ticket price (HK$) 43 66 64 57

* as of 31 December 2012

The Group is committed to pursuing visual and audio effect perfection to
improve movie-going experience for our audiences. Currently, all screens
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore have been fully
installed with digital equipment and over 50% of the Group’s screens are
3D compatible. In Hong Kong, two additional cinemas have been
equipped with Motion Chair D-BOX delivering extraordinary theatrical
experience to audiences through its authentic motion effects synchronised
with onscreen actions. In Taiwan, the Group is the exclusive digital IMAX®
operator and has added one new digital IMAX® screen during the year.
Currently, the Group has installed over 100 sets of unprecedented SONY
4K Projection System in our Mainland China multiplexes and about 120
sets of projectors to support the high frame rate (HFR) movies. The Hobbit:
An Unexpected Journey was the first movie made at a high frame rate of
48 frames per second and was widely released in December 2012. We
believe these unrivalled visual effects will deliver premium and awe-
inspiring theatrical experience to our audiences.

OSGH CINEMAS OSGH CINEMAS

TOTAL SCREENS NUMBERS TOTAL ADMISSIONS
RAERBFEHAH RAERBEZAR
Million &&
2008-2012 2008-2012
BFRRE : 3079 & FRRE 1539
CAGR: 30.7% / - CAGR: 15.3%
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|

FEESHEE LS EHE

HE

R BB AE FE
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEE W R DM

Mainland China
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN MAINLAND CHINA

2012 2011
Number of cinemas* 42 27
Number of screens* 306 197
Admissions (million) 8.3 53
Net average ticket price (RMB) 35 33
Gross box office receipts (RMB million)* 315 189
* as of 31 December
# before deduction of government taxes and charges

In 2012, the market gross box office receipts of urban area in Mainland
China increased to RMB17.1 billion by 30% while the gross box office
receipts generated by the Group’s multiplexes in Mainland China boosted
by 67% as compared with last year. During the year, the Group opened
15 new cinemas with 109 screens in cities of Beijing, Changzhou,
Chengdu, Chongging, Dalian, Nanning, Shanghai, Suzhou, Tianjin, Xining
and Zhongshan. Thanks to rich film line-up, growing demand of high
quality of entertainment experience and persisting support to the film
industry from the Chinese government, the Group’s multiplexes in
Mainland China served approximately 8.3 million patrons during the year,
representing 56% growth from last year. The Group has slightly increased
the average ticket price to maintain stronger competitiveness in the
market. The Mainland China’s cinema industry environment experienced
severe competition in 2012. The contribution from the exhibition business
in Mainland China to the Group is limited due to the pressure we face in
the early stage of operation.
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Hong Kong
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN HONG KONG

2012 2011
Number of cinemas* 6 6
Number of screens* 26 26
Admissions (million) 29 2.8
Net average ticket price (HK$) 66 61
Gross box office receipts (HK$ million) 193 173

* as of 31 December

During the year, Hong Kong as a whole recorded market box office
receipts of HK$1.56 billion, up by 12% from HK$1.39 billion last year. The
Group's cinemas in Hong Kong showed continuous improvements and
recorded higher box office takings of HK$190 million this year (2011:
HK$170 million) despite the closure of GH Hollywood at Diamond Hill in
March 2011. The Group is the first Hong Kong cinema to install Motion
Chair D-Box. With the growing demand on theatrical exhibition technology
and the well-received Motion Chair D-Box introduced in GH Mongkok last
year, the Group further installed 74 D-Box Motion Chairs in GH Citywalk
and Golden Gateway in 2012. Excluding GH Hollywood, both the total
box office receipts and admissions of the other six cinemas increased by
approximately 18% and 8%, respectively.
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Taiwan =p-]
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP’'S CINEMAS IN TAIWAN REFAREERIEEHE

2012 2011 —E--f —T——F
Number of cinemas* 1 10 WER 11 10
Number of screens* 109 101 REHA * 109 101
Admissions (million) 13.9 121 ABER(ABAR) 13.9 12.1
Net average ticket price (NTD) 244 237 FIFREGIAK) 244 237
Gross box office receipts (NTD billion) 3.4 29 ERBRA(TERAE) 3.4 2.9
* as of 31 December * HE=E+-A=1+—8

Due to the lack of strong local films in 2012, Taipei City's market box HR-ZZE——FRZAHIES  WEILTHEREE
office receipts dropped by 6% from NTD3.84 billion last year to NTD3.62 FEUWAHEFHIBAEHNAEE THKNESFHN
billion this year. However, the Group’s 35.71%-owned Vie Show cinema 362 B & SR » ANEE ¥R 35.71% HEa B
circuit recorded about 18% and 15% growth in box office receipts and ERGHER AR AL A XD BEEE R HEE &
admissions as compared with last year. This was mainly due to the good — #18% K& 15% ' TEER - E—— FERENRK
performance of two new cinemas opened in late 2011 and another one in  $H R - T — 40 A HER¥EHN — Kok
April 2012. With the opening of these new cinemas, the market share of ERf - EEZZEFHEUEE  BEESENTS
Vie Show has increased to about 42% (2011: 38%). Vie Show is the (FEXRDIEE442% (- ——4F :38%) - BiES
exclusive digital IMAX® operator and has added one new digital IMAX® & &I R IMAXCEL PR - WEIRE —HE2TE
screen with total of six screens as at 31 December 2012. During the year, #IMAX®HRE #EZ-—ET——F+-_A=+—H%4&
the Group's share of net profit for the year from Vie Show increased to  HENIRIFEE - FA - KEBD (R FORNEE L
HK$46 million by 24% from last year's HK$37 million. MR EFR3,700 BB TIEMN24% ZF 4,600 85T ©
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Singapore
OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN SINGAPORE

2012 2011
Number of cinemas* 1 10
Number of screens* 87 81
Admissions (million) 9.1 9.3
Net average ticket price (S$) 9.2 8.6
Gross box office receipts (S$ million) 83 80

* as of 31 December

Singapore box office receipts totalled S$194 million in 2012, slightly up
from $$188 million in 2011. The Group’s 50%-owned Golden Village
cinema circuit maintained its leading position with a market share of 43%
by reporting a box office receipts of $$83 million for the year (2011: S$80
million). The performance of GV Katong opened in December 2011
exceeded expectation with an average occupancy rate of 40%. In
November 2012, the Group opened a new 6-plex at City Square Mall with
impressive and innovative design reducing our reliance on manpower. GV
City Square is the first cinema with auto-gate entrance in Singapore and
the first boothless multiplex and ‘Couples Cinema’ in South East Asia.
During the year, Golden Village also spent approximately S$5 million to
fully upgrade GV Jurong Point and refurbish GV Plaza Singapura to 1st-tier
premium cinema. Both cinemas have been performing very well since re-
opening, although a temporary closure of GV Jurong Point for renovation
from February to April 2012 had some negative impact on the bottom line
in short term. Having taken into the consideration of tax credit resulted
from settlement of a tax dispute and reversal of tax provisions made in
prior years, the Group shared net profit of HK$51 million for the year,
mildly up from HK$48 million last year.
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Film & TV Programmes Distribution and Production

In 2012, the Group’s film distribution and production business recorded
revenue of HK$110 million (2011: HK$160 million). Last year the Group
recorded total sales income of HK$70 million contributed from sale of two
Chinese TV drama series 2 & Z# and z££{% & while there was no new
production released in current year. The overall results decreased from last
year although the distribution business in Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Singapore performed well and generated more profit to the Group in
2012 compared with last year. The Group distributed about 120 films in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore (over 130 films in
2011). The Group's film library of more than 140 films and TV titles with
perpetual distribution rights continued to contribute steady licensing
income to the Group.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group is optimistic in the film industry of the
territories in which we operated, especially in the booming market,
Mainland China. In addition to keep forging ahead in establishing cinemas
in the Mainland China and pursuing acquisition opportunities to further
expand the Group's cinema portfolio in the Asia Pacific region, the Group
will continue to streamline and solidify the business operations and
stringently control the costs. The Group will use its best endeavours to
strengthen and explore both the exhibition and distribution networks in
territories with higher market potential and better returns. Coupled with
the government encouragement in cultural industry, the success of 3D
presentations and the growing demand of high-quality entertainment
experience in Mainland China, the Group will focus more on the
development of its business in Mainland China.

As of 26 March 2013, the Group operated 42 cinemas with 306 screens in
Mainland China and 4 cinemas with 26 screens were in various stages of
interior decoration and are in the pipeline for openings. By the end of
2014, the Group expects to operate 78 cinemas with 571 screens in
Beijing, Changsha, Changzhou, Chengdu, Chongging, Dalian, Dongguan,
Fushun, Guangzhou, Haining, Hefei, Heyuan, Huizhou, Jiashan, Jinan,
Jinhua, Jingdezhen, Linyi, Maanshan, Nanning, Nantong, Shanghai,
Shangrao, Shenyang, Shenzhen, Suzhou, Tangshan, Tianjin, Qingdao,
Wuhan, Wuhu, Wujiang, Wuxi, Xian, Xining, Xuyi, Yancheng, Yangjiang,
Yangquan, Yinchuan, Yingkou and Zhuzhou based on lease agreements
signed as of 26 March 2013, although the number may vary due to the
actual handover date, the progress of interior decoration, application of
relevant licenses and the entering into of new lease agreements during the
period.
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In Hong Kong, the Group has closed down GH Mongkok in February 2013
upon expiry of the lease, and plans to renovate GH Tsing Yi in the first half
year of 2013. The Group will look for new cinema sites in order to
maintain its market position of theatre operation in Hong Kong. In Taiwan
and Singapore, the Group also plans to renovate 3 existing cinemas with a
total of 26 screens in 2013.

In view of the growing demand for Chinese-language films, the Group will
continue to expand its distribution and production business. The Group
will re-produce the classic film Fly Me to Polaris in 2013. This new Fly Me
to Polaris will adopt the Sony super high resolution 4K digital filming
techniques, which is a pioneering attempt in Mainland China. The Group
will also seek opportunities to co-operate with Hollywood studios in film
production activities and look for good scripts for Chinese language films
and TV drama series co-production. The Group has one Chinese TV drama
series currently under the early stage of production.

Currently, the Group has strong liquidity and reasonable financial leverage.
In order to cope with the rapid expansion, the Group will utilise the
available bank loan facilities to finance the cinema projects in Mainland
China and other expansion investment opportunities. The management
will closely monitor and maintain an optimal gearing structure to limit the
risk.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group maintained a rich liquid fund with
cash balance of approximately HK$730 million (2011: HK$710 million) and
had net current assets of HK$160 million (2011: HK$380 million). The
Group's outstanding bank loans totalled HK$650 million (2011: HK$500
million). The significant increase in bank loans is to finance the cinema
projects in Mainland China. In 2012, the Group spent about HK$320
million for fixed assets investment of which, approximately HK$260 million
was for the capital expenditure of the cinema projects in Mainland China.
Details of bank loans including the terms of the loans, interest rates,
currencies and securities are disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements. As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s gearing ratio,
calculated on the basis of external borrowings over total assets, was about
23% (2011: 20%). Management will continue to monitor the gearing
structure and make adjustments if necessary in light of changes in the
Group's development plan and economic conditions.

The Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi except for certain assets and liabilities
associated with the investments in Singapore and Taiwan. The overseas
joint ventures of the Group operate in their local currencies and are subject
to minimal exchange risk on their own. While for Hong Kong and
Mainland China operations, due to the volatility of the currency market,
management decided to maintain a higher level of deposits in Renminbi,
thus lowering the exposure to exchange risk. The directors of the
Company will continue to assess the exchange risk exposure, and will
consider possible hedging measures in order to minimise the risk at
reasonable cost. The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as of 31 December 2012.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 1,395 (2011: 1,565) permanent
employees. The Group remunerates its employees largely by reference to
industry practice. In addition to salaries, commissions and discretionary
bonuses, share options are granted to certain employees based on
individual merit. The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
As at 31 December 2012, there was no forfeited contribution arising from
employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme.

BERFMBUR

RZE——F+—A=+—H KEEIEHF1,395%
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Report of the Directors

ESGREE

The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) have pleasure in
presenting the report of the Directors and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company which is a leading
integrated film entertainment company in the markets where the principal
activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video distribution,
film exhibition, provision of advertising and consultancy services in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore, films and television
programmes production in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set
out in the financial statements on pages 65 to 128.

The Directors did not declare any interim dividend in year 2012.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in notes 28(a) to the financial
statements.

Save for the share options as set out below and as set out in note 28(a)(ii)
to the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December
2012.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
or the company laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION R ERRE

fTwelve  Eighteen
Year Year Year months months Year
ended 31 ended 31 ended31 ended31 ended31  ended 30
December  December  December December December June
BZ+-f #=1+=A HEZ=Zt=-A*HZ+=A #=+=A &HZ=~A
=t-A =t—-H =+—-H =+—-H Z=+—H =+H
LFE HFE IHEE It+=@A +NAEA FE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2009 2008

—E--F —T——F ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTTNF ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FiET Fi#T FET FiET Fi#&r
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)  (Audited)  (Audited)
(BFR) (KFEK) (KFK) (REFK) (KFR) (KER)
(restated)  (restated)

(#E7)) (4EF)

Consolidated income statement &4 ER

Turnover ] 1,591,971 1,369,562 1,077,533 809,975 1,230,904 654,770
Profit before taxation MR ER AT A 98,737 117,434 94,898 36,228 115,394 17,549
Income tax FriSH (1,033) (22,563) (22,511) (13,586) (20,484) (10,391)
Profit for the period/year from RHEREERY

continuing operations REIE,EERF 97,704 94,871 72,387 22,642 94,910 7,158
Profit for the period/year from BRIESEEB

discontinued operation AHME FE R — = = — 1,198 3911
Profit for the period/year AU E R 97,704 94,871 72,387 22,642 96,108 11,069
Attributable to: PATR A REA -
— Equity holders of the Company — ARAIREEE A 95,987 95,943 70,823 22,172 95,542 10,763
— Non-controlling interests — JE RS 1,717 (1,072) 1,564 470 566 306

97,704 94,871 72,387 22,642 96,108 11,069

L These figures are presented for comparison purposes.
e ZEHF BRI 2
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MBENBE

As at 31 December As at 30 June
W+=A=+—8H WARA=+H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
- —T——% ZZ-TF ZTTNF ZTITN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(RBER) (# &%) (&%) (15 &%) (45 &%)
Consolidated statement FERBMRRE
of financial position
Fixed assets EEEE 1,413,351 1,206,446 681,465 395,055 367,395
Interests in associates N NI £ 6,876 — — — —
Amounts due from jointly JRE LS R 422
controlled entities NGIE- e — — — — 32,285
Loan to a joint venture partner BT —BEEEMH
ZEH — — — 5,357 —
Available-for-sale equity securities  A] 4 H & % AR & 35 — 149 246,083 1,500 —
Prepaid rental BAHEE 74,840 28,472 30,435 5,592 8,015
Club memberships o 2,490 2,490 2,490 2,490 3,590
Rental and other deposits R REMES 119,046 106,631 63,809 56,214 54,006
Trademark e 79,785 79,785 79,785 79,421 79,421
Goodwill [EES 73,658 73,658 73,658 28,538 —
Deferred tax assets BEHIREE 22,547 7,335 3,095 420 358
Non-current portion of pledged BEBBITERZ
bank deposits FEENERED 7 69,296 48,010 29,476 25,038 10,133
Current assets MEEE 1,062,827 1,017,910 667,558 731,960 422,904
Assets of a jointly controlled BESE 2 LR
entity held for sale RAVBE — — — — 141,037
Total assets BERAE 2,924,716 2,570,886 1,877,854 1,331,585 1,119,144
Current liabilties B & 905,087 636,354 388,049 290,636 277,064
Liabilities of a jointly controlled BEEE 2 KR
entity held for sale RAIEE — — — — 101,135
Non-current portion of bank loans ~ #R47 & 3% 3EENH
B 325,354 376,345 82,400 62,732 7,800
Non-current portion of AR R 2 FFENE
convertible notes BH — — 6,662 6,150 —
Non-current portion of obligations FIEFEBH 2
under finance lease FERNERER 7 12,356 — — = —
Amount due to a jointly e — R SRR )
controlled entity RAIFKIE - — — 5,357 —
Loans from joint venture partners A& BHREZER — — — — 42,505
Loan from non-controlling FEIRAR AR IR 2 B
shareholder — — — — 696
Deposits received Bliizs 8,830 9,891 5318 4,887 4,248
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBAE 28,478 24,713 19,623 13,868 16,540
Total liabilities BfEesE 1,280,105 1,047,303 502,052 383,630 449,988
Net assets BEFE 1,644,611 1,523,583 1,375,802 947,955 669,156
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 10,518 9,739 11,554 1,881 1,421
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 28(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, representing the retained profits,
amounted to HK$319,283,000 (2011: HK$230,939,000). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, contributed surplus and capital
redemption reserve of HK$664,835,000, HK$271,644,000 and
HK$8,833,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2012, may be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company in certain circumstance prescribed by
Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman & Executive Director
Wu Kebo

Executive Directors
Li Pei Sen

Mao Yimin

Tan Boon Pin Simon

Wu Keyan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Man Kit

Huang Shao-Hua George

Wong Sze Wing

Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation. Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the
Bye-laws of the Company, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, each of Ms. Wu Keyan, Mr. Leung Man Kit and Mr.
Huang Shao-Hua George shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself or herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting.

Ms. Wu Keyan has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is determinable by the Company by not less than three months’
notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

(GRS
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this
report, the Company repurchased certain of its shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Directors
consider that the share repurchases were beneficial to equity holders of
the Company who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the
share repurchases are set out below:

REE EHES

s

it

B

RBE-Z——F+-_A=+—HUIEFEAREE
FBEBMRL - KRBARBBHAZZMERRD
AR BEEETRN -EXRARBORN
HREARARENARBREREANEF - FriE
Bt FEEINNT

Aggregated

consideration

(excluding

transaction

Number Highest price Lowest price costs)

of shares per share per share BRE

repurchased R R (T

Month/Year B3 &4 BE RO E R EE RIEER 5 HA)

HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT T FHET

January 2012 —E——F—f 2,990,000 0.280 0.260 821

May 2012 —E——FHA 1,385,000 0.295 0.275 395
4,375,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BENRTETHAERRKRS - 18
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BN EREEREERLA
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors R=-—ZFT——#F+—-A=+—H AQGZEERKF
and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or BTk A BRANA &) HEAEESEAE (E5 7%

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within & EA S (&0 ([ 555 R EIE &0 1) EXVER) 2 &% -
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the  {RREAMRMAD K EHEE  HEA AT BREZARRE
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company IBHEXVEEIIEFE 2 B MATRE: SR
pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to Bz pra&s4 Fi#RAI(I Em#R A ) prE EmsiT A
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for EHETE AR HREESTR|([2EFR ) BEHE
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) — ZN/AFJERBERFT 2 #E2E BABINT ¢

contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued (i) RAEATERITHRAPERMEEO.10

share capital of the Company (the “Shares”), Vv v DI NN oy = N |
underlying Shares and debentures of the oK E-EE 2 ERS
Company

* Approximate
percentage

of Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued share

Total capital of the

number of Company

Name of Director/ Shares and *RGRAEE

Chief Executive Number of Numberof  underlying Shares RAERERAT

EE/IETHAR Capacity Shares underlying Shares R R ERTREH

i3] 5 ReOEE HRRASE HRRALY FESAES

Wu Kebo Interest of controlled 1 1,594,227,401 (L) — 1,594,227,401 (L) 59.49%

5k corporations
REEEER

Beneficial owner 1 24,545,000 (L) — 24,545,000 (L) 0.92%
ERBmAA

2 — 60,000,000 (L) 60,000,000 (L) 2.24%

Wu Keyan Beneficial owner 2 — 700,000 (L) 700,000 (L) 0.026%
hm ERBAA

Li Pei Sen Beneficial owner 2 — 200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.007%
A ERfAA

Leung Man Kit Beneficial owner 2 — 200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.007%
2RE ERfAA

Huang Shao-Hua George ~ Beneficial owner 2 — 200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.007%
BOE ERBBA

Tan Boon Pin Simon Beneficial owner 2 — 1,200,000 (L) 1,200,000 (L) 0.045%
5347 ExBBA
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(i)

* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares
in issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 Shares) as at 31 December 2012.

Notes:

1. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu") was deemed to have
interest in a total of 1,594,227,401 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463
Shares were held by Skyera International Limited (a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Wu); (ii) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway
Enterprises Limited (a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu); (iii)
565,719,948 Shares were held by Orange Sky Entertainment Group
(International) Holding Company Limited (a company which is 80%
owned by Mr. Wu) and (iv) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber
International Limited (a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu).

In addition, Mr. Wu was interest in 24,545,000 Shares as at 31
December 2012 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

2. These underlying Shares represented the Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of share options granted by the Company under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 28 November
2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”).

Abbreviations:
“L"  stands for long position
“S"  stands for short position

Interests in shares of associated corporations

Mr. Wu was also the beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of Golden Harvest Film Enterprises Inc., which beneficially
held 114 million non-voting deferred shares of Orange Sky Golden
Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

In addition to the above, Mr. Wu had non-beneficial equity interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company which were held for the
benefit of the Group.

Save as disclosed above and save for the disclosure referred to under
“Share Option Schemes” set out below and in note 28(a)(ii) to the
financial statements on page 109 of this annual report, as at 31 December
2012, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(i)

& ZERB HIRER-_FE——F+_H
=+ —HEZTRI7# 2 (F12,679,819,248
fRAZ 1) TIaT & °

Hisz -

1. RIRFE 5 REAGRA - iy R4 (ThE4ED
WG BEE A $£1,594,227,401 BB 1D - & ()
439,791,463 IR H L e E 2 BHER H) A A
Skyera International Limited?74 : (ii) 408,715,990
& AR 19 B 10 %5 & 2 & % B &) 2 8 Mainway
Enterprises Limited 35745 : (i) 565,719,948 A% A% 17
F {0 SE A A 80% IR IERY 1 RINE RIRSEER (B (B
BR) R A BR A RIFEA K (v)180,000,000 A& AR 17
BHAEENEE AKEEBMN A BCyber

International Limited 357 e

S BEETAEFRER-F— =4
+= A=+—B B4 24,545,000 B AR5
s o

2. EEAMRGHERLDRERL DN =T
T—F+— 8= +/\R KM HBRE
(=TT FWBIESHE)]) B 2 AR
T BT 2R -

A -

Ll #EFA
k-9

B EEBR O 2

fh 5& 4 78 A& Golden Harvest Film Enterprises
Inc. 2MPEBITRAZERZEFA » Mz A
EnFEaARAn2EMRBRRBERERRE
BRARIN14BERERZEELTRS °

B EdES MEERAEBNGHERR
AZETHEARFEmRA R

B EXWBEEAR TXRARFRF173EHTBERE
B 28(a)i) A BE [ BB At &l | 2 WE=|ID -
T —F T _A=1t—HB ARRBEEZRIE
TTRAEBRAR A REAEMEREE EERERR
HIERPIEXVED) 2Bty - R D K EREZH L
BHEATRARRAREZESMAEERPIEXVES
32GEFEZERMATRE  ARBRETRIE A
BARBEE T2 R SORE

BRERRE (EE)BRA A 33
3R 2012



Report of the Directors

ESGREE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings

“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures”
above and “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2012 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

0]

2001 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the 2001 Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, which
became effective on 30 November 2001. Eligible participants of the
2001 Share Option Scheme include the Directors and other
employees of the Group, shareholders of the Company, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group and customers of the Group.

Each grant of the share options to the Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates,
must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the share option). In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates which would
result in the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted under the 2001 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if
any) (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Shares at each date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of the grant, shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2001
Share Option Scheme must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of,
and from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Directors, which may
not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or after the date
of grant as the Directors may determine in granting the share
options (which in any event must be prior to the close of business
on 30 October 2011) and ending on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the
Directors and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share
option, there is no general requirement that a share option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.
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The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the date of the offer; and (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer, provided that the price
shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at 28 November
2001. This limit was refreshed by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting of the Company held on 10
December 2007 in accordance with the provisions of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each eligible
participant under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of such limit (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant of such share option
shall be separately approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

As at the date of this report, options entitling the holders thereof to
subscribe for an aggregate of 63,550,000 Shares (representing
approximately 2.37% of Shares in issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 Shares)
as at the date of this report) remain outstanding under the 2001
Share Option Scheme. The 2001 Share Option Scheme was
terminated with effect from 11 November 2009 when the new
share options scheme adopted by the Company on 11 November
2009 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”) became unconditional.
Notwithstanding the termination of the 2001 Share Option Scheme,
the outstanding options granted under the 2001 Share Option
Scheme remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the grant thereof.

Share options granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the
shareholders’ meetings.
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(i)

2009 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the 2009 Share Option Scheme for the
purpose to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible
means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits
to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of the 2009 Share
Option Scheme include the Directors and other employees of the
Group, consultant or adviser, distributor, contractor, supplier,
service provider, agent, customer and business partner of the
Group. The 2009 Share Option Scheme became effective on 11
November 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from that date.

Each grant of the share options to a connected person of the
Company, or any of their associates, must be approved by all of the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent non-
executive Director who is the grantee of the option). In addition,
any grant of the share options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or an independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates which would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue on the date of the offer and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant, shall be subject to approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting with voting to be
taken by way of a poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2009
Share Option Scheme shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for such period as determined by the
Board, which period shall not be more than 30 days from the day of
the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, the expiry date of such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of the offer. Save as determined by
the Directors and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share option, there is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

(ii)
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The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of a share option is determinable by the Directors,
provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share option; (i) the
average closing price per Share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at 11 November
2009, being the date of adoption of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme. This limit was last refreshed by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2012 in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules
so that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 268,120,424 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution on 15 May
2012. In addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options under
the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of such limit (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of such share option shall be separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this report, options entitling the holders to
subscribe for an aggregate of 268,120,424 Shares (representing
approximately 10.01% of Shares in issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248
Shares) as at the date of this report) are available for issue under the
2009 Share Option Scheme.

Share options granted or to be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at the shareholders’ meetings.
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Name or
category of
participant

SREH ARG

Director

BF

Huang Shao-Hua
George

"OE

Wu Kebo
RRRK

Wu Keyan
hFe

Li Pei Sen
FER

Leung Man Kit
RRAE

Tan Boon Pin Simon

R

Other participants
A%

In aggregate
st

Notes:

Date of grant
of share option

BRESHAY

23 September 2009
—TENF
AA=+=R

23 September 2009
—TTNF
hB=+=H

23 September 2009
—TTNEF
AA=+=H

23 September 2009
—TENF
AA=+=R

23 September 2009
—TTNF
NB=+=H

23 September 2009
—TTNF
NB=+=H

23 September 2009
—TTNF
NB=+=H

Exercise
price per
Share
BR
TEE

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

Exercise period
fTEH
(Note b)

tb)

23 September 2009
t0 22 September 2014
—ZTAFNAZ+=RE
“E-MEAA-+ZH

23 September 2009
to 22 September 2014
“ZETNFRAZT=RZE
—E-mEAA=TZR

23 September 2009
to 22 September 2014
—TTENFNAZTZ=HE
“E-mFEAR=T=H

23 September 2009
0 22 September 2014
—ZTHAFNAAZ+=RE
“E-MEAA-+=H

23 September 2009
t0 22 September 2014
ZETNFNAZT=HE
—T-mFARZF+=H

23 September 2009
to 22 September 2014
“ETNFNAZT=RZE
—T-mFEARZFT=H

23 September 2009
t0 22 September 2014
—EENFANAZTZ=RE
—F-EEAR=FZR

(a) Being the weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the dates on which the share options were granted or
exercised, as applicable.

(b) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.
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Number of
share
options
outstanding
as at

1 January
2012
R=B-—=F
—BA—AH

i RATHEZ
BREHE

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before

the date

of grant of
share option
SRR E
BLHAZ
BRUTE
(Note a)
(Hizta)

HK$

BT

200,000 0.451
60,000,000 0.451
700,000 0.451
200,000 0.451
200,000 0.451
1,200,000 0.451
1,050,000 0.451
63,550,000
At -

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the
date of
exercise of
the share
option
SEBRE
TREAZ
BRYUTE
(Note a)
(Hizta)

HK$

BT

Number of
share options
outstanding
as at

31 December

WA
WRRHE

200,000

60,000,000

700,000

200,000

200,000

1,200,000

1,050,000

63,550,000
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As at 31 December 2012, the Company had total outstanding share
options entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for 63,550,000
Shares under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and nil Shares under
the 2009 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 63,550,000
additional Shares, representing approximately 2.37% of the Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2012, and additional share capital of
HK$6,355,000 and share premium account of approximately
HK$22,433,000 (before issue expenses).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the disclosure under the heading “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and save as detailed in note 32 to the financial
statements on page 122 of this annual report, none of the Directors had
any material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s purchases from its
largest supplier and its five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
10% and 32 %, respectively, of the Group's total purchases.

The Group's sales to its largest customer and its five largest customers
accounted for approximately 3% and 5%, respectively, of the Group’s
total sales during the same period.

None of the Directors, or any of its associates, or any of the shareholders
of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FERRRAEMALTRREG REEHE
Rz EER KR

HREFMM RZT——FF+_A=+—B &KX
NERBEESRAEEROIEXVEHEIBHRFEZE

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2012, the following
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had the
following interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of  zZ2fFTEEE  THIA T (RATESKEETHAE
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the  LA4N) AR R TR SRR 5 8 A FAE2E 34
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO: B

*Approximate
percentage of

Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued
share capital of
Total number  the Company
of Shares and * 43 R B 13
Number of Number of  underlying Shares RAARE /T
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares  underlying Shares RAKAE BRAH G
YT 5 RAEE HERG#HE R A% BRELH
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled 1 1,594,227,401 (L) — 1,594,227,401 (L) 59.49%
R corporations
REEEER
Beneficial owner 1 24,545,000 (L) — 24,545,000 (L) 0.92%
EalEBA 6 60,000,000 (L) 60,000,000 (L) 2.24%
Skyera International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 2 439,791,463 (L) — 439,791,463 (L) 16.41%
(“Skyera") ERBEAA
Mainway Enterprises Limited  Beneficial owner 3 408,715,990 (L) — 408,715,990 (L) 15.25%
("Mainway") ERBEEA
Cyber International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 4 180,000,000 (L) — 180,000,000 (L) 6.72%
("Cyber") EREBA
Orange Sky Entertainment ~ Beneficial owner 5 565,719,948 (L) — 565,719,948 (L) 21.11%
Group (International) ERBEA
Holding Company Limited
("OSEG")
BRREESE (AR) 2K
BARAR ( [&X])
NEC Corporation Beneficial owner 360,000,000 (L) — 360,000,000 (L) 13.43%
EREAA
* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in * ZEABDHTREARNGR -_E——F+_H

issue (i.e. 2,679,819,248 Shares) as at 31 December 2012. =+ —HE TR 42 (F12,679,819,248 R AR 17)

S o
a1
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Notes:

(1) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to have interest in a total of
1,594,227,401 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by Skyera;
(ii) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway; (iii) 565,719,948 Shares were
held by OSEG (a company 80% owned by Mr. Wu) and (iv) 180,000,000
Shares were held by Cyber.

In addition, Mr. Wu was interest in 24,545,000 Shares as at 31 December
2012 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

(2) Skyera is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Skyera.

(3) Mainway is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Mainway.

(4) Cyber is a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu.

(5) OSEG (a company 80% owned by Mr. Wu) was interested in 565,719,948
Shares. Mr. Wu is a director of OSEG and Mr. Li Pei Sen is the associate
Chairman of OSEG.

(6) These underlying Shares represented the Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of share option granted by the Company under the 2001 Share
Option Scheme.

Abbreviations:
“L" stands for long position
“S" stands for short position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no other person had an
interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has entered into
and engaged in the following transactions and arrangements with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company:

(@) Procurement of Screen Advertising and In-foyer
Advertising
Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 8
December 2010, by which the Company announced, among other
things, that the following continuing connected transactions were
entered into.

BRXm=AZB(HE)HFR A A (Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Cinemas (China) Co. Ltd.) (“OSGH (China)”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Panasia Cinemedia
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Panasia Cinemedia”), entered into a screen
advertising agreement dated 30 March 2010 and a supplemental
agreement dated 31 December 2010 (collectively the “Shenzhen
Advertising Agreement”), whereby certain rights had been granted
by OSGH (China) to Panasia Cinemedia for procurement of the
screen advertising and in- foyer advertising at OSGH Cinemas
Shenzhen (& ¥l #& X 5 K & %K) (previously known as Golden
Harvest Shenzhen Cinema (3 & & ¥l % #)) operated by OSGH
(China) for a term from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2013 at
annual fees for the first two years commencing from 1 April 2010
of RMB2,200,000 and RMB2,400,000 respectively and the annual
fees for the period commencing from 1 April 2012 and ending on
31 December 2013 to be subject to an increment of 10%.
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OSGH (China) and Panasia Cinemedia also entered into a master
screen advertising agreement dated 25 April 2010 and a
supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2010 (collectively the
“PRC Master Screen Advertising Agreement”), whereby certain
rights had been granted by OSGH (China) to Panasia Cinemedia for
procurement of the screen advertising at all cinemas (other than
OSGH Cinemas Shenzhen (RIIITERZFZARFH)) in the PRC operated
or to be operated by OSGH (China), its subsidiaries and/or affiliates
for the term of commencing on 1 May 2010 and expiring on 31
December 2013 at aggregate annual fees of approximately
RMB8,790,000 for the first year, which shall be subject to an
increment of 10% (or such other sum as specified in the PRC
Master Screen Advertising Agreement) after the first year and an
increment of 10% after the second year.

City Entertainment Corporation Limited (“City Entertainment”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Panasia
Cinema Advertising Limited (“Panasia Cinema”) entered into a
screen advertising agreement on 1 December 2010 (the “HK
Advertising Agreement”), whereby Panasia Cinema would be
appointed as an exclusive agent to procure the screen advertising
and in-foyer advertising at the cinemas in Hong Kong operated and
managed by City Entertainment for the term of two years
commencing on 1 December 2010 and ending on 30 November
2012 at an annual fee calculated in accordance with the revenue
sharing ratio of City Entertainment as stipulated in the HK
Advertising Agreement.

The Board considers that it is in the interest of the Group to enter
into the Shenzhen Advertising Agreement, the PRC Master Screen
Advertising Agreement and the HK Advertising Agreement as the
Group can focus more on the management and operation of
cinemas.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
payable under the Shenzhen Advertising Agreement and the PRC
Master Screen Advertising Agreement amounted to
RMB10,479,706, which is within the annual cap of RMB
22,000,000. The aggregate transaction value under the HK
Advertising Agreement amounted to HK$999,408, which is also
within the annual cap of HK$1,000,000.

Under the Listing Rules, OSEG, being a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and its associates are connected persons of the
Company. As Panasia Cinemedia and Panasia Cinema were sold by
Panasia Films Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, to It REXIEBESEGR AT and Orange Sky
Entertainment International Holding Limited, both of which were
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of OSEG, respectively on 31
December 2010, they became indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
OSEG and thus were connected persons of the Company.
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(b)

Cinema in-foyer advertising sales agency service
On 1 September 2011, OSGH (China) , an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and je e ESE (FII) BRAR
(Panasia Cinema Advertising (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (“Panasia
Advertising”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of OSEG, entered
into a cinema advertising sales agency agreement (the “Cinema
Advertising Sales Agency Agreement”) for a term from 1 September
2011 to 31 December 2013 for the provision of in-foyer advertising
sales agency services by Panasia Advertising to OSGH (China) at all
cinemas operated or to be operated by OSGH (China) in the PRC
(other than OSGH Cinemas Shenzhen (ZIIIfE XK H) and the
cinema in Sanlitun, Beijing (1t ;2 = E#H & Cinemas)) (the
“Cinemas”). The advertising fees payable by the customers for the
in-foyer advertising at the Cinemas shall be shared between OSGH
(China) (as to 60%) and Panasia Advertising (as to 40%).

On 5 April 2012, OSGH (China) and Panasia Advertising entered
into a supplemental agreement to the Cinema Advertising Sales
Agency Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) to amend
certain terms of the Cinema Advertising Sales Agency Agreement
with effect from 1 January 2012. Pursuant to the Supplemental
Agreement, the major amendments included that (i) OSGH (China)
shall engage Panasia Advertising on a non-exclusive basis (instead
of an exclusive basis) for provision of cinema in-foyer advertising
sales agency services; (i) the profit guarantee as provided by Panasia
Advertising in favour of OSGH (China) in relation to the Cinemas (as
calculated by 2% of the aggregate box office income of each of the
Cinemas before tax for each year) including the related adjustment
provisions under the Cinema Advertising Sales Agency Agreement
shall no longer apply; and (iii) OSGH (China) (instead of Panasia
Advertising) shall be entitled to determine the advertising fees
payable by the customers in relation to the in-foyer advertising
services in relation to the Cinemas.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the total amount
received from Panasia Advertising under the Cinema Advertising
Sales Agency Agreement amounted to RMB858,339, which is
within the annual cap of RMB10,000,000. The Board considers that
the engagement of Panasia Advertising to provide cinema
advertising sales agency services to the Group will facilitate the
Group to concentrate its resources on the management and
operation of the cinemas. Meanwhile, it will enable the Group to
enhance its revenue from the provision of cinema in-foyer
advertising space for rental. The Board also considers that the
Supplemental Agreement will enhance the Group's flexibility in
engaging more advertising agencies to source additional customers
for the Group.

Under the Listing Rules, Mr. Wu and his associates are connected
persons of the Company. OSEG is 80% beneficially owned by Mr.
Wu. Panasia Advertising, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OSEG, is an associate of Mr. Wu and therefore, is a connected
person of the Company.
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(c)

Cinema Management Agreement on OSGH
Sanlitun

On 15 December 2011, I RERER=BHEFZHEREFRA
(Orange Sky Golden Harvest Sanlitun (Beijing) Cinema Management
Co., Limited) (“OSGH Sanlitun”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, OSGH (China) and dt ZIE X% & &
AR A F (Beijing Orange Sky Cinema Investment Management
Company Limited) (“Beijing Orange Sky”) entered into a cinema
management agreement in respect of the management and
operations of the cinema which is located at Suite 403-2, 4/F, No. 2,
Worker Stadium Beilu, Chaoyang District, Beijing (the “Relevant
Cinema”) for a term from 1 December 2011 to 31 December 2013
(the “Cinema Management Agreement”).

Under the Cinema Management Agreement, OSGH Sanlitun has
agreed to grant Beijing Orange Sky the rights to manage and
operate the Relevant Cinema (the “Grant”) and procure OSGH
(China) to grant the lease of certain key facilities at the Relevant
Cinema to Beijing Orange Sky to facilitate Beijing Orange Sky in
performing its respective obligations to manage and operate the
Relevant Cinema under the Grant. The total consideration of the
transaction comprises a fixed fee in the aggregate sum of
RMB6,200,000, which is payable by Beijing Orange Sky in two
instalments, and an amount representing 10% of the Net Profits (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December
2011) derived from the operation of the Relevant Cinema under the
Grant.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total amount received
from Beijing Orange Sky under the Cinema Management
Agreement amounted to RMB1,680,000, which is within the annual
cap of RMB2,300,000. The Directors are of the view that the
Cinema Management Agreement would enable the Group to
centralise the management and operation of other cinemas
managed and operated by the Group and to continue to provide
seamless cinema services and enhance the operational efficiency of
the Relevant Cinema to our customers’ satisfaction. In addition, the
leasing of facilities at the Relevant Cinema to Beijing Orange Sky
under the lease would be essential for the operations of the
Relevant Cinema by Beijing Orange Sky and could further efficiently
utilise the Group's resources.

As the entire equity interest of Beijing Orange Sky is owned by Mr.
Wau, Beijing Orange Sky is an associate of Mr. Wu and a connected
person of the Company.

(c)
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(d)

Sub-leases of office premises
Reference is made to the announcements of the Company, dated
13 January 2011 and 1 April 2011, in relation to the sub-leasing to
OSGH (China) of the office premises at Part of First Floor and
Second Floor of House No. 3 at No. 1 Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao
Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC (the “Property”). A sub-
lease agreement dated 13 January 2011 was entered into between
Beijing Orange Sky (the “Sub-lessor”), as sub-lessor, and 1t F#& &
REREUEBR AR (Orange Sky Golden Harvest (Beijing) TV &
Film Production Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing OSGH"), as sub-lessee, in
relation to the sub-leasing of the office premises with a total floor
area of approximately 166.49 square metres at the Property (the
“First Sub-Lease”). On 13 January 2011, a sub-lease agreement was
entered into between the Sub-lessor, as sub-lessor, and OSGH
(China), as sub-lessee, in relation to the sub-leasing of the office
premises with a total floor area of approximately 1,354.95 square
metres at the Property (“Second Sub-Lease”). The First Sub-Lease
and the Second Sub-Lease (as supplemented and amended) were
expired on 30 June 2011.

On 5 September 2011, the First Sub-Lease was renewed under the
renewal agreement dated 5 September 2011 entered into between
the Sub-lessor and Beijing OSGH (the “First Sub-Leases Renewal
Agreement”) for a term of two year commencing on 1 July 2011
and expiring on 30 June 2013 (both days inclusive) at the rent of
RMB5.20 per square metre per day equivalent to an approximate
amount of RMB315,998.02 per annum with the management fee
of RMBO0.61 per square metre per day, equivalent to an approximate
amount of RMB37,069.00 per annum.

On the same day, the Second Sub-Lease (as supplemented and
amended) was renewed and an additional area at Part of Third of
House No. 3 at No. 1 Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC with a total floor area of approximately 70
square metres was sub-leased under the renewal agreement dated
5 September 2011 entered into between the Sub-lessor and Beijing
OSGH (the “Second Sub-Leases Renewal Agreement”) for a term of
two year commencing on 1 July 2011 and expiring on 30 June 2013
(both days inclusive) at the rent of RMB5.20 per square metre per
day equivalent to an approximate amount of RMB2,704,555.10 per
annum with the management fee of RMBO.61 per square metre per
day, equivalent to an approximate amount of RMB317,265.12 per
annum (the First Sub-Leases Renewal Agreement and the Second
Sub-Leases Renewal Agreement, together, the “Sub-Leases Renewal
Agreements”).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total amount paid by
the Group under the Sub-Leases Renewal Agreements amounted to
approximately RMB3,464,930, which is within the annual cap of
RMB3,500,000. The Board considers that due to the growth and
expansion of the Group’s operation in the PRC, an office of larger
floor area is required to cope with such growth and expansion. In
addition, the Sub-Leases Renewal Agreements will continue to allow
the Group to maintain the present office at the same premises
without the hassle of relocation of the office which is conducive to
maintaining operating efficiency and minimising time wastage.

Under Listing Rules, Mr. Wu and his associates are connected
persons of the Company. As the entire equity interest of the Sub-
lessor is owned by Mr. Wu, the Sub-lessor is an associate of Mr. Wu
and accordingly, a connected person of the Company.
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(e)

Lease agreement in respect of operating cinemas
in Jiangyin City

On 25 September 2012, OSGH (China), as tenant, and /T2 #& 15
FeRi s EE AR A A (Jiangyin Orange Land Cinema Development
Management Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Orange Land”), as landlord,
entered into a lease agreement in respect of all those premises
being portion of 3rd, 4th and 5th Floors of Block 2, with a total
floor area of approximately 17,561 square meters (the “Leased
Property”), of the commercial and cultural complex to be
constructed on a parcel of land situated at the Xiagang
Development Zone, Jiangyin City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for a
term of 20 years commencing from the expiry date of the 4 months
decoration (rent-free) period after the delivery up of possession of
the Leased Property to OSGH (China) (which is expected to be on or
before 31 December 2014) (the “Lease Agreement”).

During the term of the Lease Agreement, OSGH (China) shall pay to
Jiangyin Orange Land an annual rent which is the higher of (a) a
yearly turnover rent based on certain percentage rates ranging from
12% to 15% of the net box office income generated from the
operation of the cinema by OSGH (China) at the Leased Property in
the relevant year; and (b) the base rental for the relevant year under
the Lease Agreement, namely RMB3,000,000 for the 1st year with
an upward adjustment of 5% per annum for each of the 2nd to 5th
year, and RMB5,000,000 for the 6th year with an upward
adjustment of 5% per annum for each of the 7th to 20th year of
the term. Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, OSGH (China) is
required to pay to Jiangyin Orange Land an amount of
RMB100,000,000 in 3 tranches up to 31 January 2014, representing
approximately 80% of the total amount of the base rental for the
term of the Lease Agreement as base rental prepayment. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement on 25 September
2012.

On 25 September 2012, Jiangyin Orange Land’s parent company,
R R L EEE AR AR (Beijing Orange Land Cinema
Investment Management Company Limited), executed a deed of
guarantee in favour of OSGH (China) to guarantee certain of
Jiangyin Orange Land’s obligations under the Lease Agreement.

The annual caps in respect of the Lease Agreement for each of the
three financial years ending 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014
were set at RMB41,500,000, RMB42,000,000 and RMB30,000,000
respectively. The total amount paid to Jiangyin Orange Land under
the Lease Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to RMB41,500,000, which does not exceed the annual
cap of RMB41,500,000.

The Directors are of the view that the entering into of the Lease
Agreement offers a good opportunity for the Group to secure
suitable premises at an appropriate location on a long-term basis at
an attractive rate of rental. The Directors believe that cinema
entertainment business in the Jiangyin City has strong development
potential and will generate considerable return and increase the
income of the Group.

(e)
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Mr. Wu, who is a connected person of the Company, indirectly
owns 84.19% equity interest in Jiangyin Orange Land. Accordingly,
Jiangyin Orange Land is a connected person of the Company and
the Lease Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The above transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules and were
subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements.

Confirmation from Directors

The Directors, including the non-executive Directors, have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions mentioned under paragraphs (a) to (e)
above and confirmed that the transactions were entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms
to or from independent third parties, and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have advised that nothing has come to their
attention that caused them to believe the continuing connected
transactions:

(@  bhave not been approved by the Board;

(b)  have not been, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision
of goods or services;

(c) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

(d)  the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the relevant announcement(s)
of the Company, where applicable, have been exceeded during the
financial year ended 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, details of the other connected transactions and/or
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. These other connected
transactions and/or continuing connected transactions constituted de
minimis transactions as defined in the Listing Rules and were exempt from
the reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval, and in
the case of continuing connected transactions, the annual review
requirements. The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
and confirmed that these other connected transactions and/or continuing
connected transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

ESGREE

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration of the employees of the Group is made/determined by
reference to the market, individual performance and their respective
contribution to the Group. As a long-term incentive, the 2009 Share
Option Scheme is in place and the details of which are set out above and
in note 28(a)(ii) to the financial statements on page 109 of this annual
report.

Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval. Other
emoluments including discretionary bonus and share option, are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, abilities,
reputation and performance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued share capital as of the date of this
report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has made charitable
and other donations in Hong Kong totaling HK$19,400.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been
audited by Messrs. KPMG (“KPMG") who will retire and being eligible, will
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as auditors of
the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2013
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
maintain the Group’s competitiveness and lead to its healthy growth. The
Company has taken steps not only to comply with code provisions as set
out in The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31
March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April
2012) (the "CG Code"”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules but also to
aim at enhancing corporate governance of the Group as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code except for deviations from code
provisions A.4.1 of the CG Code as summarised below:

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
of a listed issuer should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-
election at least once every three years at the annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s
Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a
specific term.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the code provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The
Company has made specific enquiries with all the Directors and all of them
have confirmed that they had complied with the requirements set out in
the Model Code and the Company’s code for the year ended 31 December
2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary” on pages 4 to 7
of this annual report.

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly throughout
the period to discuss the overall strategies as well as operation and
financial performances of the Group. Matters relating to (i) the formulation
of the Group’s overall strategy and directions; (i) any material conflict of
interest of substantial shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii)
approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and
other significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company'’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board are
reserved for decisions by the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Group and
implementation and execution of Board policies and strategies to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

4}

TEERAERTR

N2y

EEeRHREREBEBFARERF ) i
PEBRREERZEZN - ARREHREEEE - &R
BT EMARRIMERI4ET 2 XERFERTA (£
ME_T-—_F=ZA=+—H)REEERTA(E
- FA-RRAER) ([REERFAFAH
PR MEEREASB 2 ERBEEER -

BIRBED EEATRE AL VESFRNET Z B ES -
REBEE-ZT——F+_A=1+—HILFEE  KAF
—HEBSFEEERTRZSFRHRGEE o B
™

RIEREEIATEALVETANES - ERETA
ZHFRTEZZRZERAGHEEEN  WABTESR
BE - 2RIIFNTERLBIEEMH - HEARAR
AZARMAIZ AT  ROE=ZFRARFZ
REBAFAGHERE R UEBEE  WER
MBI E R EEHER -

Bt ARRRREHEBMAENEE - BRARFZ
EEERFHRL AL EEEIR TR T AR AR
EERR

ERETRESRS

AARCERAGERE LR RIS 108 L 31T
ABZETRFRZNEREST A ([RETRI]) R
BRZFAl - RABEMEBEFELAREH -
BEHER  REE-_E——-F+-RB=+—Hit
FE-HETRETRRARB ZTRIFFERE

=

RAFREY  EFSHRLNTES(BRESS
IE) R=RBIUERITESAN - WEZBEEHE
BNAFRFAZTE[EERAFAMEBARE A

EZSHAEREEAREERBRER CEETIE -
EEeNHEATHEE  ATRERERARK
KB ZEEVBERER - RO SE A REEER
BEEITE  (NARBERRRIEEZEMEAF
SER (HEARBFERE  FERE - T
FENEMEREERPBRS : (M ERARAZ
BAREE  RORESSELERZEZFEYA
EXZERTE -EFSCREARARNITEERER
BAREAREZARER THREZE YXEBER
HITESSBR LR -

RAERRLE (KE)BRAF
4§ 2012 49



Corporate Governance Report
TRERE®RE

All Directors have been given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the
Group and they have full and timely access to all relevant information
regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage has been effected by the
Company in respect of Director’s liabilities arising from the legal action
that may be taken against the Directors in relation to corporate activities.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Board meetings and general
meeting of the Company were held and the composition of the Board and
the attendance of the Directors at these meetings are as follows:

Members

RE

Executive Directors HITEE

Wu Kebo (Chairman) mRR(EE)
Wu Keyan (Note 1) s (fat 1)
Mao Yimin EER

Li Pei Sen R

Tan Boon Pin Simon 59°¢17
Independent non-executive Directors B IFH7TEE
Leung Man Kit 2R

Huang Shao-Hua George A
Wong Sze Wing =HT5E

Note:

1. Ms. Wu Keyan is the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo.
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General Meeting
Attended/Eligible
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9/9 0/1

9/9 11

9/9 171

9/9 0/1

9/9 11
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At least 14 days’ prior notice to the date of the meeting of the Board was
given to all Directors and an agenda together with Board papers and
materials were sent to all Directors no less than three days before the date
of the Board meeting. All Directors were given opportunity to include in
the agenda any other matters that they would like to discuss in the
meeting. The Board committees also adopted and followed the foregoing
procedures for the Board committee meetings. All Directors and Board
committee members were urged to attend the Board meeting and the
Board committee meeting in person. If any Director or Board committee
member was unable to attend any such meeting in person, participation
through electronic means had been arranged and made available to such
Director and Board committee member.

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being considered
in the Board meeting, the Director having such potential interest in the
matter shall abstain from voting. Independent non-executive Directors
with no conflict of interest were present at such meeting to deal with such
conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary or the staff of the company secretarial department
of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting and, within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for
comment and the final and approved version of the minutes was sent to
all Directors for their records. The Board committees had also adopted and
followed the same practices and procedures as used in the Board
meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the total number of
independent non-executive Directors met the minimum number as
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director a
written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board considers all
of them to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for (i) Ms. Wu Keyan who
is the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo; (ii) Mr. Li Pei Sen who is the associate
chairman of Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding
Company Limited (a company which is 80% owned by Mr. Wu Kebo) and
the interests as set out in the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures” and “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in the “Report of the
Directors” in this annual report, there is no other financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.
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In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules, the other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their acknowledge and skills. The
Company arranged in-house trainings for the Directors in the form of
seminars and reading materials during the year ended 31 December 2012.
The training topics received by all the Directors, namely Mr. Wu Kebo, Mr.
Mao Yimin, Mr. Li Pei Sen, Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon, Ms. Wu Keyan, Mr.
Leung Man Kit, Mr. Huang Shao-Hua George and Ms. Wong Sze Wing,
comprised latest changes in the Listing Rules including the Corporate
Governance Code and statutory disclosure obligation under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wu Kebo, is responsible for providing
leadership of the Board and ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at the Board meeting. In addition, he is charged with the
duty to ensure that the Directors receive in timely manner adequate,
complete and reliable information in relation to the Group'’s affairs. The
Chairman also encourages Directors to actively participate in and to make
a full contribution to the Board so that the Board functions effectively and
acts in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Mao Yimin (“Mr. Mao") is the chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the
Company. Mr. Mao has been focusing on strategic planning and
assessment of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

Save for the interests of Mr. Mao as set out in the paragraph headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” in the “Report of the Directors” in this
annual report, there is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the
same purpose as being appointed for a specific term. At the Board
meeting and Board committee meeting where constructive views and
comments of the non-executive Directors are given, the non-executive
Directors provide independent judgment on the issues relating to the
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management process.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yuen Kwok On (“Mr. Yuen”) has been appointed as the company
secretary (“Company Secretary”) of the Company since 26 April 2010. The
Company Secretary needs to support the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that Board's policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secretary should report to the Board chairman
or the chief executive on all related matters. For the year ended 31
December 2012, Mr. Yuen confirmed that he had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established a remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2004 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive Director,
being Mr. Wu Kebo, and two independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Leung Man Kit and Ms. Wong Sze Wing (who also acts as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee). The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
packages of all the Directors and senior management of the Company
according to its terms of reference, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for the loss or termination of their office or appointment. The
remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company is
determined by reference to factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and
senior management, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is required to consult the Chairman of the
Board regarding the remuneration of the executive Directors, and
members of the Remuneration Committee have access to professional
advice on remuneration of executive Directors, if considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2012 to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
directors’ fees of all the existing non-executive Directors and to review
the remuneration package of all existing executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee also
reviewed and approved the terms of service contracts of the executive
Directors. The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and the attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee to the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

Members

4=

Wong Sze Wing (Chairman) =R (FE)
Wu Kebo R

Leung Man Kit RREE

Details of emoluments of each Director and members of senior
management (which includes the executive Directors only) are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements on page 94 of this annual report.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established a nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 26 March 2012 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive Director,
being Mr. Wu Kebo (who also acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive Directors, being Ms.
Wong Sze Wing and Mr. Leung Man Kit. The principal responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals qualified to become
Board members, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection, appointment or re-appointment of individuals
nominated for directorships, in particular the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive. The Nomination Committee, in making such selection
and recommendation, will take into account factors such as professional
qualification, experience, academic background, etc.

The members of the Nomination Committee have access to independent
professional advice on the nomination of executive Directors, if considered
necessary.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2012 to review the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference
and the structure, size and composition of the Board.

Members

24—}

Wu Kebo (Chairman) h (EE)
Leung Man Kit R

Wong Sze Wing =5

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a going
concern basis. It is also responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the annual/interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures. Management
of the Company provides all relevant information and records so as to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities.
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The Board established an audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) on 9 October 1998 and formulated its written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, which
have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. As at 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee’s members
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Leung
Man Kit (who also acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Huang Shao-Hua George and Ms. Wong Sze Wing.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of the members of the
Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Members

4=}

Leung Man Kit (Chairman) RRE(FE)
Huang Shao-Hua George HAOE

Wong Sze Wing =5

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s financial control, internal control (including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget) and risk management as delegated by the
Board, and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditors for audit and non-audit services.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed
and reviewed financial reporting matters including the interim and audited
financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
engagement of the external auditors and the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems and
made recommendations to the Board. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment or resignation of the external auditors.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an issuer
must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-executive
directors only, and at least one of them is an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
Our Directors confirm that we have complied with such requirement
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid/payable to the
Group's auditors, Messrs. KPMG, are set out as follows:

Services Rendered

FriR R BR %

AR
FEEAZ AR

Audit Services
Non-audit services

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the financial
statements in each financial year with support from the finance
department of the Company and to ensure that the relevant accounting
policies are observed and the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants are complied with in the
preparation of such financial statements and to report the financial affairs
of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 63 to 64 of this annual
report.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system with the aim at (i) safeguarding the Group's assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; (i) maintaining proper accounting
records; and (iii) ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-
established organisation structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function for the year ended 31 December 2012, where some
findings have been identified and reported to the Board. There is no
material internal control deficiency that may affect the shareholders of the
Company which has come to the attention of the Audit Committee or the
Board. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied
with code provisions C.2.1 and C.2.2 on internal controls as set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant
information to the shareholders of the Company in a timely manner. The
general meeting(s) of the Company provides a forum for communication
between shareholders of the Company and Directors.

Review of the general meeting proceedings is carried out by the Board
from time to time so as to ensure that the Company has followed the best
corporate governance practices. Notice of the general meeting together
with the circular setting out details of each of the proposed resolutions
(including procedures for demanding a poll where required under the CG
Code), voting procedures and other relevant information were delivered to
all the shareholders of the Company with sufficient notice as required
under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the Company before the date
appointed for the general meeting. At the commencement of the general
meeting, procedures for demanding (where required) and conducting a
poll are explained by the chairman of the meeting to the shareholders of
the Company and the votes cast are properly counted and recorded by the
scrutineer appointed by the Company. Poll results of the general meeting
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the general meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there has been no material change
in the Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws. The updated
and consolidated version of the Company’s memorandum of association
and the Bye-laws are available on the Company’'s website
(http:/Amww.osgh.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Company's
website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) also contains an “Investor Relations”
section which offers timely access to the Company’s press release, financial
reports, announcements and circulars.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company can deposit a written request (stating the objects of the meeting
and signed by the shareholders concerned) to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM") for the transaction of any business specified in
the written request at the principal place of business of the Company for
the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. If the Directors do
not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the request (after being
verified to be valid) proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may by themselves convene an EGM, but any
EGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of the deposit of the request.

Shareholders, representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders as at the date of
deposit of the requisition, can by written requisition request the Company
to (a) give to the shareholders of the Company notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved or is intended to be removed at the next
annual general meeting of the Company; and (b) circulate to the
shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matters referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at such meeting. If the requisition requires a notice of a
resolution, it must be deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company not less than 6 weeks before the date of the annual general
meeting. In the case of any other requisition, the written requisition must
be deposited at the principal place of business of the Company not less
than 1 week before the date of the annual general meeting.

If a shareholder of the Company, who is duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meetings of the Company, intends to propose a person
other than a Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder concerned shall lodge with the principal place of business of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary (i) a written
notice of his/her intention to propose that person for election as a Director
at the general meeting; and (ii) a notice in writing by that person of his/her
willingness to be elected together with the necessary information within
the period commencing no earlier than seven days after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

The shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary or Company’s Corporate
Communication Department at the principal place of business of the
Company situated at 16/F., The Peninsula Office Tower, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email address: ir@goldenharvest.com.
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The Group continues to strive to build a long-term sustainability within its
operations and the communities in which it operates.

In 2012, the focus areas of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance report included working conditions, satisfying customers’
aspirations and community involvement.

Highlights of our focus areas are shared below.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Shareholders

In 2012, the Company established its shareholder communication
policy to promote effective communication with its shareholders. The
shareholder communication policy is available on the Company’s website
(http:/Avww.osgh.com.hk).

The Company organised roadshows in April and September 2012 and
several private meetings with the investor community which included
analysts, fund managers and other investors, to keep them abreast of
the development of the Group, subject to compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. Besides, the Company’s website
contains an investor relations section which offers timely access to the
Company's press releases, announcements, financial highlights
and other business information. The Company has designated executives
to maintain regular dialogue with the investors via an email account
(ir@goldenharvest.com).

Customers

The Group operates in an extremely competitive cinema entertainment
industry. The Group has not only designated websites, such as
http://www.goldenharvest.com for GH cinemas in Hong Kong and
http://www.osghcinemas.com for OSGH cinemas in PRC, but also uses social
networking tools, such as Facebook (http:/Awww.facebook.com/ghcinemas)
and Weibo (http://weibo.com/osgh) to stay closely connected with our
audiences to provide the latest news of “on show” and “coming soon”
movies as well as ticketing information. In order to save audiences’ time
for purchasing movie tickets at box offices, the Group has provided online
and mobile ticketing.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has 1,395 full-time employees. Our
people are core to our success and the implementation of our strategies.
The Group is committed to providing staff training and development
programmes designated to help its employees to enhance their knowledge
and skills.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY

We are dedicated to fostering an environment that encourages staff
development and advancement and creating a workplace where
employees’ efforts are recognised and rewarded.

Working conditions

The Group has adopted a “five-day week” to promote a healthy work-life
balance. The Company also understands the needs of its employees and
strives to make them feel proud to be part of the Group, so its employees
have been offered staff free ticket passes to watch movies without
charges.

In order to recognise the hard work and achievements of our employees,
the performance of Group’s employees is reviewed annually and many
different ways of rewards are granted as recognition and motivation. As
part of the performance management system, key performance indicators
are adopted to ensure that the requisite directions and standards are set
and met. The Group’s performance-based remuneration system involves
competitive salaries, commissions, discretionary bonuses, share options
and fringe benefits to provide a comprehensive compensation package.

Development and training

The Company endeavours to foster a culture of continuous learning and
talent development. Employees have been encouraged to take on-the-job
training with the aim to enrich their work-related skills and knowledge and
also to promote their job satisfaction. Some tailor-made training courses,
for example, computer courses, have periodically been conducted for our
employees. Besides, the Company has put in place education subsidies and
examination leave for employees seeking to deepen their work-related
knowledge.

Health and safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment for all its employees. In order to comply with the labour
standards and laws, guidelines and notices are provided to enhance the
knowledge of its employees in occupational safety and health.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Satisfying customers’ aspirations

Serving the needs of our patrons to let them have a wonderful viewing
experience in our cinemas is our top priority. This is done through our
selection of a wide variety of high quality movies for our patrons. There
were over 280 movies exhibited in our cinemas in Hong Kong in the year
2012.

The Group always endeavours not only to provide high quality customer
services but also to deliver high quality audio and video experience to our
patrons by equipping advanced technologies, such as Motion Chair D-Box
and IMAX® screen, in our cinemas. In order to improve and maintain high
standard of customer services, the Group has put in place a mystery
shopper program. The programme not only helps us provide high quality
services to audiences, but also lets us know whether there is any room for
improvement.
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Consumer Protection

Protecting our audiences’ privacy is one of the top priorities of our
employees as we have developed an online purchase system for movie
tickets and membership system on our website. To this end, we have
implemented strict data protection mechanisms to protect the
confidentiality of our customers’ data. In addition to the Company’s policy
being set out in employee handbook, the Company has periodically
reminded its frontline employees of the importance of personal data
protection.

Anti-corruption

The Group takes its anti-corruption responsibilities very seriously. The
Group has ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system across the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group strives to support the
community by participating in different charitable activities. Throughout
the year 2012, the Company has donated money to charities as well as
encouraged its employees to participate in community services. For
instance, the Company sponsored its employees to participate in the ORBIS
Moonwalkers in November 2012 for collecting donations to support the
fight against global blindness. Same as last year, the Company continued
to invite more than 400 primary and secondary students from schools set
up by The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon to enjoy Mcdull e The
Pork of Music at GH Whampoa, Hong Kong in August 2012.

We recognise that children are the future of society. We also believe that
viewing good children’s films is not simply a way of recreation but may
also have a positive influence on children and help them build the right
view of life. Because of this, our Group sponsored a campaign called
“2012 Promotion and Exhibition of Children’s Films” organised by the
Administration Centre of Digital Film Content of State Administration of
Radio, Film and Television, China Children’s Film Society, etc to promote
children’s films in Mainland China. The opening ceremony of the campaign
was launched at one of the Group’s cinemas in Beijing, namely OSGH
Cinemas Beijing Wanliu, on the eve of the International Children’s Day.
From 1 to 7 June 2012, each of our 32 cinemas in Mainland China
arranged 3 time slots per day to exhibit the children movies for free. In
recognition of our contributions to the campaign, the Group has been
granted the title of “caring cinemas of children’s films” by the campaign
hosts.

Going forward, the Group will continue to expand its activities and services
in the community.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To promote environmental awareness, we have been committed to
introducing green practices in our internal operations in the Hong Kong
office. The green practices adopted included saving energy in the office,
recycling office resources, minimising the use of paper, encouraging
electronic communications and smart use of the Company’s vehicles.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 128, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R (RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2011

Note HK$'000
Turnover 3&4 1,591,971 1,369,562
Cost of sales (643,990) (576,287)
Gross profit 947,981 793,275
Other revenue 5(@@) 38,989 26,137
Other net income 5b) 25,156 58,936
Selling and distribution costs (762,251) (612,002)
General and administrative expenses (114,376) (103,162)
Other operating expenses (9.436) (26,624)
Profit from operations 126,063 136,560
Finance costs 6(a) (26,877) (19,126)
Share of loss of an associate (449) -
Profit before taxation 6 98,737 117,434
Income tax 7@) (1,033) (22,563)
Profit for the year 97,704 94,871
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 95,987 95,943
Non-controlling interests 1,717 (1,072)
Profit for the year 97,704 94,871
Earnings per share 11
Basic 3.58 cents 3.64 cents
Diluted 3.58 cents 3.63 cents

The notes on pages 73 to 128 form part of these financial statements.

RAERRLE (KE)BRAF 65

£5§ 2012



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 97,704 94,871
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of:
Overseas subsidiaries 6,467 14,703
Overseas jointly controlled entities 17,328 (7,544)
23,795 7,159
Available-for-sale equity securities:
Deficit on revaluation - (20,526)
Impairment losses recognised - 20,526
Net movement in the fair value reserve - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 121,499 102,030
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 119,639 102,857
Non-controlling interests 1,860 (827)
Total comprehensive income for the year 121,499 102,030

Note:  There is no tax effect relating to the above components of comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 73 to 128 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 12 1,413,351 1,206,446
Interest in an associate 14 6,876 -
Available-for-sale equity securities 16 - 149
Prepaid rental 17 74,840 28,472
Club memberships 2,490 2,490
Rental and other deposits 119,046 106,631
Trademark 18 79,785 79,785
Goodwill 19 73,658 73,658
Deferred tax assets 27(b) 22,547 7,335
Pledged bank deposits 23 69,296 48,010
1,861,889 1,552,976
Current assets
Inventories 20 5,789 6,137
Available-for-sale equity securities 16 - 20,000
Film rights 21 59,081 68,640
Trade receivables 22(a) 111,418 84,226
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 22(b) 156,159 133,043
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 15() 1,119 200
Deposits and cash 23 729,261 705,664
1,062,827 1,017,910
Current liabilities
Bank loans 24 323,204 127,252
Trade payables 26(a) 165,647 120,205
Other payables and accrued charges 26(b) 211,671 205,920
Deferred revenue 26(c) 178,439 153,199
Obligations under finance lease 25 4,905 -
Taxation payable 27(a) 21,221 29,778
905,087 636,354
Net current assets 157,740 381,556
Total assets less current liabilities 2,019,629 1,934,532
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 24 325,354 376,345
Deposits received 8,830 9,891
Obligations under finance lease 25 12,356 -
Deferred tax liabilities 27(b) 28,478 24,713
375,018 410,949
NET ASSETS 1,644,611 1,523,583
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28
Share capital 267,982 268,419
Reserves 1,366,111 1,245,425
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,634,093 1,513,844
Non-controlling interests 10,518 9,739
TOTAL EQUITY 1,644,611 1,523,583
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2013.
Wu Kebo Mao Yimin
Director Director

The notes on pages 73 to 128 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries . . 1.538,756 N 1,447,497
Current assets
Amount due from a subsidiary 13 1,560 1,560
Prepayments 439 448
Deposits and cash 23 20 2,056
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 2019 . A0e4
Current liabilities
e e e e N ‘27 I
B %2 3,460
NET ASSETS 1,540,348 1,450,957
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28
Share capital 267,982 268,419
Reserves 1,272,366 1,182,538
TOTAL EQUITY 1,540,348 1,450,957

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2013.

Wu Kebo
Director

The notes on pages 73 to 128 form part of these financial statements.

Mao Yimin
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Share Capital Non-
Share Share option redemption  Contributed Reserve  Exchange  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve surplus funds reserve profits Total EENY equity
Note HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

At 1 January 2012 268,419 665,625 5934 8,39 80,000 13,430 38,744 43329 1,513,844 9739 1,523,583
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 95,987 95,987 1,117 97,704
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - 23,652 - 23,652 143 23,795
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 23,652 95,987 119,639 1,860 121,499
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (1,081) (1,081)
Equity-settled share-based transactions 28(a)ii) - - 1,837 - - - - - 1,837 - 1,837

Shares repurchased 28(a)ii) (437) (790) - 37 - - - (437) (1,227) - (1,227)
Transfer to/(from) reserves - - - - - 4,536 - (4,536) - - -
At 31 December 2012 267,982 664,835 .m 8,833 80,000 17,966 62,396 524310 1,634,093 10518 1,644,611

Equity
NES Capital component
Share Share option  redemption  Contributed  of convertiole Reserve Exchange Retained controlling

fehlic] premium reserve reserve surplus notes funds reserve profits Total interests
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1January 2011 254,374 630,856 5515 6,422 80,000 2874 7454 31,830 344,923 1,364,248 11,554 1,375,802
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 95,943 95,943 (1,072) 94,871
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - 6914 - 6,914 245 7159
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - 6,914 95,943 102,857 (827) 102,030
Dividends paid to

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (988) (988)
Transfer to retained profits on

[apse of share options 28(a)il) - - (380) - - - - - 380 - - -
Lapse of non-vesting share options  28(a)i - - (2,384) - - - - - - (2.384) - (2.384)
Equity-settled share-based

transactions 28(a)i - - 3183 - - - - - - 3183 - 3183
Issuance of convertible note - - - - - 8120 - - - 8,120 - 8,120
Conversion of convertible notes ~ 28(ali) 16,019 38,79 - - - (10,994) - - - 33817 - 533817
Shares repurchased 28(a)i) (1,974) (4.023) - 1974 - - - - (1,974) (5,997) - (5,997)
Transfer to/(from) reserves - - - - - - 5976 - (5.976) - - -
At 31 December 2011 268419 665,625 5934 839 80,000 - 13430 38,744 433,29 1,513,844 9739 1,523,583

The notes on pages 73 to 128 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 98,737 117,434
Adjustments for:
Interest income 5@) (12,596) (3,650)
Finance costs 6(a) 26,877 19,126
Depreciation of fixed assets 12 126,539 96,798
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 6(c) 3,364 3,749
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale equity securities, net 5(b) (7.911) (28,484)
Fair value loss on a financial derivative instrument - 246
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities - 20,526
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 1,837 799
Exchange loss/(gain), net 4,517 (5,110)
Share of loss of an associate 449 -
Operating profit before changes in working capital 241,813 221,434
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 451 (2,641)
Decrease in film rights 9,685 18,364
Increase in trade receivables (25,907) (50,991)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (21,683) (44,272)
Increase in trade payables 42,523 33,539
Increase in other payables and accrued charges 2,516 100,282
Increase in deferred revenue 21,964 56,032
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid rental (46,269) 1,819
Increase in rental and other deposits (10,509) (44,140)
Cash generated from operations 214,584 289,426
Interest received 11,953 3,361
Finance costs paid (38,629) (18,257)
Interest element of finance lease rental paid (494) -
Overseas tax paid (26,204) (27,122)
Overseas tax refunded 3,626 -
Net cash generated from operating activities 164,836 247,408
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (287,856) (613,289)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 616 124
Proceeds from disposals of available-for-sale equity securities 27,911 233,885
(Payment to)/advance from jointly controlled entities (919) 1,008
(Decrease)/increase in deposits received (1,388) 4,770
Increase in pledged bank deposits (20,450) (19,089)
Investment in an associate (1,208) -
Advance to an associate (6,117) -
Net cash used in investing activities (289,411) (392,591)
Financing activities
Advance of new bank loans 311,068 449,762
Repayment of bank loans (169,348) (51,382)
Payment for shares repurchased 28(a)(iii) (1.227) (5,997)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (1,081) (988)
Capital element of finance lease rental paid (1,821) -
Net cash generated from financing activities 137,591 391,395
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,016 246,212
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 705,664 457,677
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 10,581 1,775
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23 729,261 705,664

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 3 June 2011, the convertible notes of HK$54,144,000 (equivalent to RMB48,000,000) were converted into the Company’s
ordinary shares, creating a total of 160,189,348 new ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.338 per share.

The notes on pages 73 to 128 form part of these financial statements.

72 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) consist of worldwide film and video distribution, film exhibition, provision of advertising and
consultancy services in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore, films and television programmes production in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The other particulars and principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35(a) to
the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

(b)

0}

(i)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. None of the amendments are relevant to these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (note 34).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

0]

(i)

(iii)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and
the Group's share of the financial statements of the Group's associate and jointly controlled entities for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The results of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are consolidated and
proportionately consolidated, respectively, from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control or joint control, and continue to be consolidated and proportionately consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
financial instruments classified as available-for-sale which are stated at their fair values as explained in the note
2(g).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 33.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity holders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 2(r), (s) or (t) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(note 2(m)).

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture company operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the
other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and
losses from the joint venture company’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint venture companies (continued)
A joint venture company is treated as:

(i) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture company (note 2(c));

(i) a jointly controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture company (note 2(e));

(i) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered capital and is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture company (note 2(e)); or

(iv)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position
to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture company.

Associates and jointly controlled entities
An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2(f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that is substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual arrangement between the Group and other
parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that the Group and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the
proportionate consolidation method. The Group combines its share of the joint ventures’ individual income and
expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group’s financial
statements. The Group recognises the portion of gains and losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture
that is attributable to the other venturers. The Group does not recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint
venture that result from the Group’s purchase of assets from the joint venture until it resells the assets to an
independent party. However, a loss on the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)
When the Group ceases to have joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate (see note 2(e)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree, over

(ii) the net fair value of the accquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
When (ji) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, investments in debt and equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (note 2(m)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend income from these investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(x)(viii) and, where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(x)(vii). When
these investments are derecognised or impaired in note 2(m), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

(h) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss .
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

()]

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (note 2(m)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land classified as held under operating leases (note

2(1));
— machinery and equipment classified as being held under finance leases (note 2(1)); and
—  other items of plant and equipment, other than construction in progress.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair and maintenance is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured realisably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

— Buildings 2.0%-6.7%
— Leasehold improvements Over the remaining terms of leases
— Machinery and equipment 6.5%-20.0%
— Furniture and fixtures 8.3%-20.0%
— Motor vehicles 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress represents an asset under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Club memberships
Club memberships are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (note

2(m)). Cost includes fees and expenses directly related to the acquisition of the club memberships.

Any gain or loss arising from disposal of club memberships is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k) Trademark
Trademark is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (note 2(m)). Such
intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

(I) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

(ii)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost of valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(m)(ii).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under an operating lease are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets

0}

Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities (including those recognised using
the equity method (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities, other receivables and financial assets carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of return for a similar asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade and other receivables (continued)

(@)

(i)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in the fair value reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

fixed assets;
trademark;

club memberships;
film rights; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(n)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (notes 2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using a first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the write-down of loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Film rights

(i) Film rights
Film rights represent films and television drama series and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (note 2(m)).

Amortisation of film rights is charged to profit or loss based on the proportion of actual income earned during
the year to the total estimated income from the sale of film rights.

(ii)  Film production in progress
Film production in progress represents films under production and are stated at cost less any impairment losses
(note 2(m)). Costs include all direct costs associated with the production of films. Impairment losses are made for
costs which are in excess of the expected future revenue generated by these films. Costs are transferred to self-
produced programmes upon completion.

(iii)  Self-produced programmes
Self-produced programmes are stated at cost, comprising direct expenditure and an attributable portion of direct
production overheads, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (note 2(m)). Amortisation is charged
to the profit or loss based on the proportion of actual income and earned during the year to the total estimated
income from the sale of the self-produced programmes.

(iv) Investments in film/drama production
Investments in film/drama production are stated initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net income
derived from the investments, and less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (note 2(m)) except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (note 2(m)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(w)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would be received at that time do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible notes is measured as the present value of the future
interest and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to
similar liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as
the liability component is recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective interest method. The equity component of the convertible note
is recognised in a capital reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained profits.

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(ii)  Share-based payments
The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) Paid leave carried forward
The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year
by the employees and carried forward.

(iv) Employment Ordinance long service payments
Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required number of years of service to the Group in order
to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Employment
Ordinance”) in the event of the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in
the event that such a termination of employment meets the circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments expected to be made. The

provision is based on the best estimate of the probable future payments which have been earned by the
employees from their services to the Group to the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Employee benefits (continued)

(v)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions to the Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions are fully and immediately vested with the employees when contributed to the Scheme. The assets
of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") are
members of the state-sponsored retirement scheme (the “State Scheme”) operated by the PRC government.
Contributions to the State Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they became payable in accordance with the rules of the State Scheme.

(v) Income tax

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences arising
from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

84 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Income tax (continued)

(iv)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

0}

(D)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 2(w)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in deferred income in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Income from box office takings is recognised when the services have been rendered to the buyers;
(i) Income from film distribution and screen advertising is recognised at the time when the services are provided;

(i) Income from promotion, advertising, advertising production and agency fees and consultancy services is
recognised upon the provision of the services;

(iv)  Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised when the films or television programmes are
released for distribution;

(v) Income from confectionery sales and audio visual sales is recognised, at the point of sales when the confectionery
and audio visual products are given to the customers;

(vi)  Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned;

(vii)  Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method;

(viii)  Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established;

(ix)  Income from tickets booking is recognised upon the provision of the services;

(x)  Income from gift voucher purchases is recognised when customers exchange them for goods/services or upon
expiry; and

(xi)  Income from membership fees is recognised in profit or loss in the accounting period covered by the membership
terms.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries,
the associate and jointly controlled entities are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for those arising from the translation
of the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries, the associate and jointly controlled entities which are taken directly
to the exchange reserve.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was determined.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(2)

(aa)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  hassignificant influence over the Group; or

(3)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(3)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third party.

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(bb) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of operating
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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3 TURNOVER

Turnover represents the income from the sale of film, video and television rights, film and TV drama distribution, theatre
operation, promotion and advertising fee income, agency and consultancy fee income and proceeds from the sale of audio
visual products.

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenue. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out in note 29(a) to the financial statements.

4 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the reportable segments, which are as follows:

— Hong Kong

—  Mainland China
—  Taiwan

—  Singapore

The results of the Group’s revenue from external customers for entities located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore are set out in the table below.

Each of the above reportable segments primarily derive their revenue from film exhibition, film and video distribution, film and
television programme production, provision of advertising and consultancy services. For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the revenue
and results attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment revenue and results

Revenue is allocated to the reporting segment based on the local entities’ location of external customers. Expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
geographical locations or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is operating profit after tax.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning operating profit after tax, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on operating profit including the proportionate consolidated results of
jointly controlled entities of each segment. Intra-segment pricing is generally determined at arm'’s length basis.
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4 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment information regarding the Group's revenue and results by geographical market is presented below:

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Segment revenue

Revenue from external customers

— Exhibition 223,492 201,300 524,773 328,309 430,096 369,114 362,981 349,765 1,541,342 1,248,488
— Distribution and production 73,529 57,681 6,120 87,307 11,801 4,057 14,917 12,848 106,367 161,893
— Corporate 2,314 2,127 - - - - - - 2,314 2,127
Reportable segment revenue 299,335 261,108 530,893 415,616 441,897 373,171 377,898 362,613 1,650,023 1,412,508
Reportable segment profit 37,482 14,000 3,863 27,832 46,419 36,601 55,140 50,247 142,904 128,680

Reconciliation — Revenue

Reportable segment revenue 1,650,023 1,412,508
Elimination of intra-segmental revenue (20,014) (13,990)
Others (38,038) (28,956)

1,591,971 1,369,562

Reconciliation — Profit before taxation

Reportable profit from external customers 142,904 128,680
Unallocated operating expenses, net (46,917) (32,737)
Non-controlling interests 1,717 (1,072)
Income tax 1,033 22,563
Profit before taxation 98,737 117,434
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5

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

(a)

(b)

Other revenue

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Interest income from bank deposits 12,596 3,650
Income from the grant of cinema management and
operational rights, net (note 32(v)) - 7,031
Miscellaneous income 26,393 15,456
38,989 26,137
Other net income
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gain on settlements of claims, net 6,080 763
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale equity securities, net 7,91 28,484
Compensation income from a contractor for delays in
construction progress (note) 12,491 15,021
Exchange (loss)/gain, net (1.326) 14,668
25,156 58,936
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group reached agreement with a contractor in respect of compensation for delay in
construction progress together with punitive damages relating to cinemas in Mainland China. In addition to reimbursement of expenses
of HK$28,870,000 (2011: HK$46,030,000), an amount of HK$12,491,000 (2011: HK$15,021,000) representing compensation of
punitive damages was recorded as other net income for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
(a) Finance costs
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
— within five years 19,236 9,567
— after five years 15,818 7,577
35,054 17,144
Interest on convertible notes - 155
Finance charges on obligations under finance lease 494 -
Other ancillary borrowing costs 4,329 1,827
Total finance costs on financial liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss 39,877 19,126
Less: Finance costs capitalised into fixed assets* (13,000) -
26,877 19,126
* The finance costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 5.25% to 8.46% per annum (2011: Nil).
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
(b) Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments (note 8))
Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (i) 195,213 172,920
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 7,129 6,307
Equity-settled share-based payments - (1,071)
202,342 178,156
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
() Otheritems
Cost of inventories 47,231 40,606
Cost of services provided 559,563 474,014
Depreciation of fixed assets 126,539 96,798
Amortisation of film rights (note (ii)) 37,196 61,667
Auditors’ remuneration 3,455 4,369
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
— minimum lease payments 213,861 176,902
— contingent rentals 46,059 38,329
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities (note (i) - 20,526
Fair value loss on a financial derivative instrument (note (iii)) - 246
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 3,364 3,749
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale equity securities, net (7,911) (28,484)
Rental income less direct outgoings (25,824) (16,861)
Dividend income from a listed investment (566) (330)

BRAERRE (KE)BRAF 91

£5§ 2012



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:
(i) The amount includes provision for long service payments.
(if) The amortisation of film rights for the year is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

(iii) The impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities and fair value loss on a financial derivative instrument were included in “Other
operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Current income tax
Provision for overseas tax 3,392 5,978
Over-provision in respect of prior years (1,796) (251)
________________________________________________________________________________ 1596
Deferred tax — overseas (note 27(b))
el S, . ... . . a2 <J_7_1_>
_______________________________________________________________________________ ©527) . 55%
Jointly controlled entities
Current income tax
Provision for overseas tax 18,772 16,428
Over-provision in respect of prior years* (7.070) (707)
_______________________________________________________________________________ 11,702 SR
Deferred tax — overseas (note 27(b))
Offireifonand e ofienporyehicares o N 1) 2
_______________________________________________________________________________ o560 17007

1,033 22,563

* During the year ended 31 December 2012, the tax credit principally related to settlement of a tax dispute and reversal of

provisions made in prior periods due to the retrospective application of new tax legislation in Singapore.
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7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the tax losses brought forward from previous years exceed the
estimated assessable profits for the year (2011: HK$Nil).

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax of the subsidiaries established in the PRC is calculated at 25% (2011: 25%) of
the estimated taxable profits for the year.

The State Council Notice GuoFa (2007) No. 39 Notice on the Implementation of the Transitional Preferential Corporate Income
Tax Policies (Bl )% (2007) 39 5%< Bl 75 B B 7 B 1 1 35 P 15 7 48 % 18 28 IR A9 3 A0 )) (“Circular 39”) provided a five-year
transitional period effective from 1 January 2008 for those enterprises which were established before 16 March 2007 and which
were entitled to a preferential lower tax rate under the then effective tax laws and regulations. The transitional tax rates are
18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards, respectively. Accordingly, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, located in the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone is subject to income tax at 24% and 25% for 2011 and
2012 respectively.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
the relevant jurisdictions.

The China tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, for dividends distributed by a
PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings generated beginning on 1
January 2008. Undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are exempt for such withholding tax. As at 31
December 2012, the Group has not provided for income taxes on accumulated earnings generated by its Mainland China
subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 since it is probable that they will not be distributed to the
immediate holding company outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has provided HK$4,110,000 (2011: HK$3,818,000) for income taxes on
accumulated earnings generated by its jointly controlled entity in Taiwan which will be distributed to the Group in the
foreseeable future.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable tax rates:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before taxation 98,737 117,434
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 12,167 21,309
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 11,550 10,886
Tax effect of non-taxable income (16,372) (10,827)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 2,650 8,859
Tax effect of previously unrecognised prior years' tax losses utilised this year (4,694) (10,385)
Tax effect of temporary differences unrecognised, net 376 (139)
Tax effect of loss attributable to an associate 112 -
Provision for Taiwan withholding tax for the year 4,110 3,818
Over-provision in prior years (8,866) (958)
Actual tax expense 1,033 22,563
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8 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled
Directors’  and benefits scheme  share-based 2012 2011

fees in kind  contributions payments Total Total
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(Note)

Executive directors

WU, Kebo - 1,364 - 1,837 3,201 3,604
LI, Pei Sen - 240 - - 240 244
TAN, Boon Pin Simon - 490 - - 490 834
WU, Keyan = 567 14 = 581 570
MAO, Yimin - 2,191 92 = 2,283 1,423
CHANG, Tat Joel - - - - - (580)
Independent non-executive
directors
LEUNG, Man Kit 330 - - - 330 340
HUANG, Shao-Hua George 220 - - - 220 210
WONG, Sze Wing 220 - - - 220 220
770 4,852 106 1,837 7,565 6,865
Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the director under the Group’s share option schemes. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for equity-settled share-based payment transactions as set out in note 2(u)(ii)
to the financial statements.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 28(a)
(i) to the financial statements.
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10

1"

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (2011: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8 to
the financial statements. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2011: three) are as follows:

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 4,349 3,511
Retirement scheme contributions 69 36
4,418 3,547

The emoluments of the three (2011: three) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2012 2011

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

HK$Nil-HK$ 1,499,999 2 3
HK$1,500,000-HK$2,000,000 1 =

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company includes a profit of HK$88,781,000 (2011:
HK$216,065,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$95,987,000 (2011: HK$95,943,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,680,372,144 (2011:
2,634,942,987) shares, in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted)

2012 2011

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 2,684,194,248 2,543,739,900
Effect of convertible notes converted - 93,041,484
Effect of shares repurchased (3,822,104) (1,838,397)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) at 31 December 2,680,372,144 2,634,942,987
Effect of conversion of convertible notes - 14,848,601
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s

share option scheme - 16,937
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 2,680,372,144 2,649,808,525
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$95,987,000 (2011: HK$96,098,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,680,372,144 (2011:
2,649,808,525) shares, calculated as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (diluted)

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit attributable to equity holders 95,987 95,943
After tax effect of effective interest on the liability component of

convertible notes - 155

Profit attributable to equity holders (diluted) 95,987 96,098

The weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out in note 11(a) to
the financial statements.

12 FIXED ASSETS

The Group
Property, plant and equipment
Machinery
Leasehold Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction
land Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 January 2012 70,272 91,645 716,915 429,456 51,133 4,223 295,747 1,659,391
Additions - - 115,537 103,151 11,342 - 89,860 319,890
Disposals - - (6.356) (14,088) (1,598) - (73) (22,115)
Transfers - - 121,390 32,476 3,796 - (157,662) -
Exchange adjustments 3,982 4172 4,725 (15) 129 (113) 18,614 31,494
At 31 December 2012 74,254 95,817 952,211 550,980 64,802 4,110 246,486 1,988,660
Representing:
Cost 74,254 95,817 952,211 550,980 64,802 4,110 246,486 1,988,660
Accumulated depreciation

and amortisation:

At 1 January 2012 3,649 33,579 247,343 141,466 24,397 2,511 - 452,945
Charge for the year 867 3,797 57,983 56,572 6,636 684 - 126,539
Written back on disposals - - (5,131) (11,455) (1,549) - - (18,135)
Exchange adjustments 226 1,900 6,798 4,444 703 (111) - 13,960
At 31 December 2012 4,742 39,276 306,993 191,027 30,187 3,084 - 575,309
Net book value:
At 31 December 2012 69,512 56,541 645,218 359,953 34,615 1,026 246,486 1,413,351
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Machinery
Leasehold Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction
land Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 January 2011 70,272 72,812 433,271 261,656 45,181 4,062 187,790 1,075,044
Additions - - 133,785 148,864 7,155 - 323,485 613,289
Disposals - - (6,974) (28,915) (5,881) - - (41,770)
Transfers - 18,833 155,141 46,731 4,447 - (225,152) -
Exchange adjustments - - 1,692 1,120 231 161 9,624 12,828
At 31 December 2011 70,272 91,645 716,915 429,456 51,133 4,223 295,747 1,659,391
Representing:
Cost 70,272 91,645 716,915 429,456 51,133 4,223 295,747 1,659,391
Accumulated depreciation

and amortisation:

At 1 January 2011 2,810 30,785 202,992 131,555 23,682 1,755 - 393,579
Charge for the year 868 2,336 50,609 35,775 6,006 644 - 96,798
Written back on disposals - - (5,800) (26,680) (5417) - - (37,897)
Exchange adjustments (29) (42) (458) 816 66 12 - 465
At 31 December 2011 3,649 33,579 247343 141,466 24,397 2,51 - 452,945
Net book value:
At 31 December 2011 66,623 58,066 469,572 287,990 26,736 1,712 295,747 1,206,446
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)
(i)  Analysis of carrying values of fixed assets:

2012 2011

Leasehold land Buildings Leasehold land Buildings
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Outside Hong Kong

— long-term leases 69,512 40,494 66,623 40,175
— medium-term lease - 16,047 - 17,891
69,512 56,541 66,623 58,066

(ii) At 31 December 2012, certain land and buildings which are situated in Singapore with carrying values of
HK$110,703,000 (2011: HK$100,722,000) were pledged as security to bank for a bank loan and banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 24).

13 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 167,654 167,654
Capital contribution in respect of
equity-settled share-based payments 11,744 9,907
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,493,290 1,493,408
1,672,688 1,670,969
Less: Impairment losses (132,372) (221,912)
1,540,316 1,449,057
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Included in
— Non-current assets 1,538,756 1,447,497
— Current assets 1,560 1,560
1,540,316 1,449,057

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 35(a) to the financial statements.
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are not expected to be recovered within one year, except for
an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$1,560,000 (2011: HK$1,560,000) which is expected to be settled within one year

and included within current assets.

The carrying amounts of these amounts due from subsidiaries approximate their fair values.
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14

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

The Group
2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of net assets 759 -
Amount due from an associate 6,117 -

6,876 =

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free, has no fixed terms of repayment and is not expected to be
recovered within one year.

The following list contains particulars of the associate, which is a unlisted corporate entity:

Proportion of ownership interest

Form of Place of Group's
business incorporation Particulars of issued effective Held by Held by
Name of associate  structure and operation and paid up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activity
BM=RESEKX  Incorporated PRC Registered capital 49% - 49%  Theatre operation
BERAHARDE RMB2,000,000

Summary financial information on the associate

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Loss
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2012
100 per cent 30,236 (28,688) 1,548 163 (916)
Group's effective interest 14,816 (14,057) 759 80 (449)
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15 AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(@) Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities of HK$1,119,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$200,000) are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The carrying amounts of these amounts due from jointly
controlled entities approximate their fair values.

(b) Details of the jointly controlled entities of the Group are set out in note 35(b) to the financial statements.

(c)  Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities — Group's effective interest:

2012 2011

HK$’ HK$'000

Non-current assets 441,851 431,605
Current assets 201,665 134,123
Non-current liabilities (25,196) (26,602)
Current liabilities (243,817) (237,231)
Net assets 374,503 301,895
Income 802,882 727,873
Expenses (696,034) (639,332)
Total comprehensive income for the year 106,848 88,541

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES

The Group

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

Available-for-sale equity securities:

— Listed investment in Hong Kong, at fair value (note) - 20,000
— Listed investment in Australia, at fair value - 149

- 20,149

Market value of listed investments - 20,149

Representing:

Non-current assets - 149
Current assets - 20,000

- 20,149
Note:

At 31 December 2011, the Group held 10,000,000 shares in Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (“Overseas Chinese”), a company
listed in Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group disposed all its shares in Overseas Chinese and recorded a gain of
HK$7,911,000 (2011: loss of HK$875,000).
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18

19

PREPAID RENTAL

Included in the prepaid rental as at 31 December 2012 was an amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately of
HK$49,320,000) in respect of the lease for a property in Mainland China from a related company for the purpose of theatre
operation. Further details are disclosed in note 32(ix) to the financial statements.

TRADEMARK

The Group
2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost and carrying amount

At 1 January and 31 December 79,785 79,785

Trademark represented the perpetual license for the use of the brand name “Golden Harvest” which takes the form of sign,
symbol, name, logo, design or any combination thereof.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group'’s trademark has an indefinite useful life for the following reasons:

(i) the trademark, which was acquired by the Group in 2001, have been in use for a considerable number of years and will
continue to be used for the long term; and

(i) the Group has incurred and intends to continue to incur significant advertising and promotion expenses, which are
charged to profit or loss when incurred, to maintain and increase the market value of its trademark.

Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers Appraisal”), a firm of independent professional qualified valuers, has

confirmed, in their valuation of the Group's trademark, that the fair value of the trademark exceeded its carrying value as at
31 December 2012. Accordingly, no impairment loss was recorded at 31 December 2012.

GOODWILL

The Group
2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost and carrying amount

At 1 January and 31 December 73,658 73,658

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill for the cash-
generating units (“CGU") and determined that such goodwill was not impaired at 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwiill (continued)
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according to country of operation and business segment as follows:

The Group
2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Distribution and production — Mainland China 73,658 73,658

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount rate at
20% based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

The assumptions used are based on management'’s past experience of the specific market, and reference to external sources
of information. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.

INVENTORIES

Inventories which are carried at cost of HK$5,789,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$6,137,000) comprised largely goods
for resale.

The carrying amount of inventories sold and recognised as an expense to the consolidated income statement of the Group
was HK$47,231,000 (2011: HK$40,606,000).

FILM RIGHTS

The Group
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Film rights — completed 47,822 52,681
Investment in film production 6,471 10,384
54,293 63,065
Film production in progress, at cost 4,788 5,575
59,081 68,640

Film rights represent films and television drama series and self-produced programmes.

Investments in film/drama production represent funds advanced to licensed production houses for co-financing of the
production of films and/or television programmes. The investments are governed by the relevant investment agreements
entered into between the Group and the production houses whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the
distribution of the related films and/or television programmes. The amounts will be recoverable by the Group from a pre-
determined share of the sales proceeds of the respective co-financed films or television programmes, resulting from the
distribution to be confirmed by the relevant production houses.

Film production in progress represents films under production.
In accordance with note 2(0) to the financial statements, the Group performed impairment tests at 31 December 2012 and

2011 by comparing the attributable carrying amounts of the film rights/self-produced programmes with the recoverable
amounts.
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21 FILM RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the film production in progress based on the present value of estimated
discounted future cash flows from the film production in progress. No impairment loss has been recognised in this respect for
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The amount of production in progress expected to be recovered after one year is HK$2,413,000 (2011: HK$4,624,000).

22 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(@) Trade receivables

The Group
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade receivables 111,535 84,343
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (117) (117)
111,418 84,226

(i)  Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net
of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within 1 month 46,721 52,259
1 to 2 months 51,496 26,965
2 to 3 months 3,813 2,963
Over 3 months 9,388 2,039
111,418 84,226

The Group usually grants credit periods ranging from one to three months. Each customer has a credit limit and
overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not considered significant. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair values. Further details on
the Group's credit policy are set out in note 29(a) to the financial statements.

(ii) Impairment losses of trade receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

There were no movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011. As at 31 December 2012, the allowance for doubtful debt is HK$117,000 (2011: HK$117,000).
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(a) Trade receivables (continued)
(ii) Impairment losses of trade receivables (continued)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:
The Group

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 102,030 52,259
Less than three months past due 3,970 29,928
Past due over three months 5,418 2,039
9,388 31,967
111,418 84,226

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there were
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

(iii) At 31 December 2012, trade receivables of the Group included amounts of HK$5,137,000 (2011:

HK$1,601,000) due from related companies which were unsecured, interest-free and expected to be recoverable
within one year.

(b) Al of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments (including amounts due from related companies) are expected to
be recoverable within one year.

23 DEPOSITS AND CASH

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
Deposits at banks 401,060 333,559 - -
Cash at bank and in hand 397,497 420,115 20 2,056
798,557 753,674 20 2,056

Less: Pledged deposits

— for bank loans (46,850) (22,216) - -
— for bank guarantees (22,446) (25,794) - -
Total pledged deposits (69,296) (48,010) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 729,261 705,664 20 2,056
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24

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Deposits at banks are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate their
fair values.

Deposits and cash as at 31 December 2012 include HK$332,840,000 (2011: HK$193,737,000) equivalent placed with banks
in Mainland China, the remittance of which are subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the government of the PRC.

BANK LOANS

(a)

(b)

(c)

At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

The Group

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 1 year or on demand 323,204 127,252
After 1 year but within 2 years 130,409 164,857
After 2 years but within 5 years 169,074 184,608
After 5 years 25,871 26,880
325,354 376,345

648,558 503,597

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

All bank loans bear interest at floating interest rates which approximate to market rates of interest.

At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were secured by:

(i)  the property, plant and equipment of a jointly controlled entity (note 12);

(i)  the time deposits of jointly controlled entities of HK$Nil (2011: HK$371,000);

(iii)  the time deposits of subsidiaries of HK$46,850,000 (2011: HK$21,845,000); and

(iv) corporate guarantees from the Company.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the consolidated
statement of financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider it probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long
as the Group continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set

out in note 29(b) to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2012, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2011: Nil).
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24 BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

(d) The bank loans of the Group were denominated in the following original currencies:

The Group
2012
‘000
Singapore dollars 5,250 8,250
New Taiwan dollars 17,855 35,710
Renminbi 225,750 129,500
Hong Kong dollars 332,103 285,527

25 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

At 31 December 2012, the Group had obligations under finance lease repayable as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Within 1 year 4,905 6,636 - -
After 1 year but within 2 years 7,162 8,317 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years 5,194 5,565 - -
12,356 13,882 - -
17,261 20,518 - -
Less: Total future interest expenses (3,257) -
Present value of lease obligations 17,261 -
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED
REVENUE

(@) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of the reporting period:

The Group

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current to 3 months 131,161 107,975
Within 4 to 6 months 16,274 1,287
Within 7 to 12 months 2,006 1,049
Over 1 year 16,206 9,894
165,647 120,205

At 31 December 2012, trade payables of the Group included amounts of HK$233,000 (2011: HK$2,462,000) due to
related companies which were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Al of the other payables and accrued charges (including amounts due to related companies) are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

(c)  All of the deferred revenue is expected to be settled within one year.
27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision for overseas taxation for the year 22,164 22,406
Tax paid for the year (26,204) (27,122)
Balance of overseas tax provision relating to prior years 25,261 34,494
21,221 29,778
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(c)

(d)

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net deferred tax liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position 28,478 24,713
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position (22,547) (7,335)
5,931 17,378

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years are as follows:

Depreciation
allowance in Withholding
excess of tax on

the related Tax losses unremitted
depreciation recognised earnings Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 January 2011 15,439 (2,728) 4,184 (367) 16,528
Exchange adjustments (50) (230) - 15 (265)
Charged/(credited) to

profit or loss (note 7(a)) 1,322 (3,989) 3,818 (36) 1,115
At 31 December 2011 16,711 (6,947) 8,002 (388) 17,378
At 1 January 2012 16,711 (6,947) 8,002 (388) 17,378
Exchange adjustments 885 (55) - (12) 818
Charged/(credited) to

profit or loss (note 7(a)) (1,230) (15,233) 4,110 88 (12,265)
At 31 December 2012 16,366 (22,235) 12,112 (312) 5,931

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2012, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses of
approximately HK$564,843,000 (2011: $578,856,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation except the balances of HK$11,546,000 (2011: HK$7,408,000) which can be only carried forward
for five years under the laws of the relevant jurisdiction.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2012, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2011: HK$Nil) for taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities as the Group
has no significant liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

At 31 December 2012, the Company does not have any other material deferred taxation assets and liabilities (2011:
HK$Ni).
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Share capital

2012 2011
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 6,000,000,000 600,000 6,000,000,000 600,000

Ordinary shares, issued

and fully paid:
At 1 January 2,684,194,248 268,419  2,543,739,900 254,374
Conversion of convertible notes () - - 160,189,348 16,019
Shares repurchased (i) (4,375,000) (437) (19,735,000) (1,974)
At 31 December 2,679,819,248 267,982 2,684,194,248 268,419
Notes:
(i) Convertible notes

(ii)

On 24 May 2011, the Company issued tranches of zero coupon convertible notes (“Convertible Notes”) in amount of
HK$45,120,000 (equivalent to RMB40,000,000) to Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited
("Orange Sky") as part of the consideration for the acquisition of transferred assets and liabilities of a subsidiary. The Convertible
Notes were convertible at the option of the note holder into ordinary shares of the Company on or before 24 December 2015 at
a price of HK$0.388 per share. If the conversion right was not exercised by the note holder, the Convertible Notes not converted
would be redeemed on 31 December 2015 at the principal amount of the notes. The Convertible Notes were unsecured.

The fair value of the liability portion of the Convertible Notes was estimated at the issuance date using the Group's prevailing
borrowing rate and an equivalent market interest rate for a similar note without a conversion portion by Vigers Appraisal. The
residual amount was assigned as the equity component and included in shareholders’ equity.

On 3 June 2011, the Convertible Notes with principal amounts in aggregate of HK$54,144,000 were converted into the
Company'’s ordinary shares, creating a total of 160,189,348 new ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.338 per share.

Share option scheme

Equity-settled share-based transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 11 November 2009, the Company terminated the old share option
scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme"”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). The Old
Share Option Scheme was initially valid and effective from 30 November 2001 and expired on 30 October 2011. The purpose of
the Old Share Option Scheme was to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contributed to the success of
the Group’s operation. The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of the
share option scheme include the Company'’s directors, including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of
the Group and shareholders of the Company.

The New Share Option Scheme became effective on 11 November 2009 and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates, are

subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-executive director
who is the grantee of the option).
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(@) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

Share option scheme (continued)

Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of, and from the day of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The vesting period, the exercise period and the number of shares subject to
each option are determinable by the directors. The exercise period may not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or
after the date of grant as the directors of the Company may determine in granting the share options and ending on such date as
the directors of the Company may determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the directors of the Company
and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general requirement that a share option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange's closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) is an amount equivalent to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at 11 November 2009. This limit can be refreshed by the shareholders of the Company in
a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options granted to each eligible participant under the New Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at any shareholders’ meeting.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@) Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

Share option scheme (continued)

Adjustments to share options and exercise prices

As a result of the subdivision of shares in November 2009, the number of shares issuable under the share options granted under
the Old Share Option Scheme and the exercise prices were adjusted as stated in the table below. All share options under the
New Share Option Scheme were granted subsequent to the subdivision of shares in November 2009.

There were no movements in share options during the year. The outstanding share options held by directors of the Company

and other employees of the Group as at 31 December 2012 are shown in the following table:

Name or category
of participant

Director

Huang Shao-Hua

George

Wu Kebo

Wu Keyan

Li Pei Sen

Leung Man Kit

Tan Boon Pin Simon

Other participants

In aggregate

Date of grant of
share options

23 September 2009

23 September 2009

23 September 2009

23 September 2009

23 September 2009

23 September 2009

23 September 2009

Pre-adjusted
exercise price
HK$

453

453

453

453

4.53

4.53

4.53

Post-adjusted
exercise price
HK$

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

0.453

Exercise period

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

23 September 2009 to
22 September 2014

Number of

share options
outstanding

as at 1 January

2012 and
31 December
2012

200,000

60,000,000

700,000

200,000

200,000

1,200,000

1,050,000

63,550,000

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Company’s directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of

acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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(@) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share option scheme (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on the Black-Scholes model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this model. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

Date of grant
23 September 2009

(to directors and 23 September 2009
chief executive officer)  (to other participants)

Fair value at measurement date * HK$0.123 HK$0.116
Share price * HK$0.453 HK$0.453
Exercise price * HK$0.453 HK$0.453
Expected volatility 50% 50%
Option life 5 years 5 years
Expected life 2.3 years 2.0 years
Expected dividends 2.8% 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.766% 1.766%
* adjusted for subdivision of shares

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility (calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The share options granted to Mr. Wu Kebo (director) are under a service condition of three years. This condition was not taken
into account in the grant date fair value measurement of the services received. No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 63,550,000 share options outstanding under the Old Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 63,550,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 2.37% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the end of the reporting period, and additional share capital of
HK$6,355,000 and share premium account of HK$22,433,000 (before issue expenses).

Shares repurchased
During the year, the Company acquired 4,375,000 shares (2011: 19,735,000 shares) through purchases on the open market.
The total amount paid to acquire the shares during the year was HK$1,227,000 (2011: HK$5,997,000).
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(b) Reserves
(i) The Group
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i) The Company

Equity
Share Capital component

Share option  redemption  Contributed of convertible Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus notes profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2011 630,856 5,515 6,422 271,644 2,874 16,468 933,779
Profit for the year - - - = = 216,065 216,065
Transfer to retained profits

on lapse of share options - (380) - - - 380 -
Equity-settled share-based

transactions - 3,183 - - - - 3,183
Lapse of non-vesting

share options - (2,384) - - - - (2,384)
Issuance of convertible note - - - - 8,120 - 8,120
Conversion of convertible notes 38,792 - - - (10,994) - 27,798
Shares repurchased (4,023) - 1,974 - - (1,974) (4,023)
At 31 December 2011 665,625 5,934 8,396 271,644 - 230,939 1,182,538

Share Capital
Share option redemption Contributed Retained

premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2012 665,625 5,934 8,396 271,644 230,939 1,182,538
Profit for the year - - - - 88,781 88,781
Equity-settled share-

based transactions - 1,837 - - - 1,837
Shares repurchased (790) - 437 - (437) (790)
At 31 December 2012 664,835 7,771 8,833 271,644 319,283 1,272,366
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by Sections 40 and 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

(ii)  Share option reserve
The share option reserve represents the fair value of the number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(u)(ii) to the financial statements.

(iii) Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the share capital of the Company repurchased
and cancelled.

(iv) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s shares in
issue, in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, and the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition; and (i) the net transfer of HK$80,000,000 after setting off the
accumulated losses from the share premium account pursuant to the Company’s capital reorganisation in May
2007. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders of the Company.

(v)  Equity component of convertible notes
Equity component of convertible notes represents the value of the equity component of the unexercised
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes in note 2(t) to the financial statements.

(vi) Reserve funds
In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and Taiwan, the Company’s subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities established therein are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
reserve funds until the balance reaches 50% and 100% of the registered capital, respectively. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC and Taiwan regulations, the reserve funds may be used either to offset
losses, or for capitalisation by way of paid-up capital.

(vii) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(y) to the financial statements.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
representing retained profits, amounted to HK$319,283,000 (2011: HK$230,939,000). In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, capital redemption reserve and contributed surplus in aggregate of HK$945,312,000 (2011:
HK$945,665,000), as at 31 December 2012 may be distributed to shareholders of the Company in certain circumstance
prescribed by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance
at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its gearing structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the gearing structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its gearing structure calculated on the basis of external borrowings, which includes bank loans and
obligations under finance lease over total assets.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management (continued)

The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 35%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may raise new equity financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

Bank loans 648,558 503,597
Obligations under finance lease 17,261 -
Total external borrowings 665,819 503,597
Total assets 2,924,716 2,570,886
Gearing ratio 22.8% 19.6%

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are
limited by the Group's financial management policies and practices described below.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The Group has established credit control
policies of which credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures for debts recovery are in place to
minimise the credit risk. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. With such policies in
place, the Group has been able to maintain its bad debts at a minimal level.

The Group's trade receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not
significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

BRAERRE (KE)BRAF
4R 2012 115



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay. As deposits received do not have
fixed repayment terms, the carrying amounts have not been included in the table.

For a term loan subject to a repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflows based on the contractual repayment schedule, separate from the impact to the timing

of the cash outflows if the lender was to invoke the unconditional right to call the loan with immediate effect.

The Group

As at 31 December 2012

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables 165,647 165,647 165,647 - - -
Other payables and
accrued charges 211,671 211,671 211,671 - - -
Bank loans 648,558 754,083 286,969 212,082 227,790 27,242
Obligations under
finance lease 17,261 20,518 6,636 8,317 5,565 -
1,043,137 1,151,919 670,923 220,399 233,355 27,242

As at 31 December 2011

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables 120,205 120,205 120,205 - - -
Other payables and
accrued charges 205,920 205,920 205,920 - - -
Bank loans 503,597 588,394 155,178 187,929 215,954 29,333
829,722 914,519 481,303 187,929 215,954 29,333
The Company

The earliest settlement dates of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are all within one
year or on demand and the contractual amounts of the financial liabilities are all equal to their carrying amounts.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Group. Exchange differences arising on settling or translating these foreign currency
monetary items at rates different from those at dates of transactions giving rise to these monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the
Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Group’s assets or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency. As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the Group
does not expect any significant movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate. The currency giving rise to foreign currency
risk is primarily Renminbi and Singapore dollars. Management of the Group continuously monitors the Group'’s
exposure to such foreign currency risks to ensure they are at manageable levels.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than functional currency of the entity to
which they relate.

The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies

2012 2011
Hong Kong
dollars

‘000

Singapore Hong Kong Singapore
dollars dollars Renminbi dollars
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Renminbi
'000

Other receivables, deposits

and prepayments - 10,835 14 - 59 1,506
Deposits and cash - 186,533 1,867 - 284,905 6,333
Other payables and

accrued charges - (4,009) (35) - (1,279) -
Deferred revenue - (988) - - (5,443) -
Intercompany borrowings (290,228)* 104,461 - (276,030)* - -
Net exposure to

currency risk (290,228) 296,832 1,846 (276,030) 278,242 7,839
* An intercompany loan denominated in Hong Kong dollars was made to a subsidiary located in the PRC, the functional

currency of which is Renminbi. Thus, the loan recorded in the subsidiary was subject to foreign currency risk.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c) Currency risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group's profit after taxation and retained profits in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period. Other components of equity would not be affected by changes in
the foreign exchange rates:

2012 2011

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

foreign taxation and foreign taxation and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates earnings rates earnings

HK$°000 HK$’'000

Renminbi 5% 18,300 5% 17,112
(5)% (18,300) (5% (17,112)

Singapore dollars 5% 585 5% 2,352
(5)% (585) (5)% (2,352)
Hong Kong dollars 5% (14,511) 5% (13,801)
(5)% 14,511 (5% 13,801

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for 2011.

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7 arises on financial instruments being denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency and being of a monetary nature. Differences resulting from the translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities into the Group’s presentation currency are
therefore not taken into consideration for the purpose of the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily to the Group’s short and long-term loans. Borrowings at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group manages its interest rate risk exposures in accordance with defined policies through regular review with a
focus on reducing the Group's overall cost of funding as well as having regard to the floating/fixed rate mix appropriate
to its current business portfolio.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

2012 2011

Effective rate Effective rate
% HK$'000 % HK$’'000

Variable rate borrowings:

Bank loans (note 24) 1.7-7.6 648,558 1.8-7.4 503,597
Obligations under finance
lease (note 25) 10.5 17,261 - -

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after taxation and total equity by
approximately HK$5,306,000 (2011: HK$4,067,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk in existence at that
date. The 1% increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonable possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2011.

(e) Fair values
()  The fair values of receivables, bank balances and other current assets, payables and accrued charges and current
borrowings are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these assets
and liabilities.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2011 and 2012. Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
Given these terms it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

(ii)  Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table represents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instruments categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (continued)

(ii)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2011
Assets
Available-for-sale investments:
— Listed 20,149 - - 20,149

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no significant transfers between instruments
in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The movement during the year ended 31 December 2011 in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as
follows:

2011
HK$'000
Options
At 1 January 246
Proceeds from writing options _
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss during the year (246)

At 31 December -

The remeasurement of the financial derivative instrument was included in “Other operating expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.

30 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2012 not provided for in the financial statements in respect of the
acquisition of fixed assets are as follows:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Contracted for:

Mainland China 78,215 129,799
Taiwan 10,935 14,507
Singapore 3,267 2,565
92,417 146,871

Authorised but not contracted for:
Mainland China 1,167,863 799,889
Taiwan - 5,926
Singapore 1,258 16,185
1,169,121 822,000
1,261,538 968,871
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30 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

31

(b) Operating lease commitments
(i)  Aslessor
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are receivable as follows:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

Leases on premises expiring
— within one year 33,866 34,850
— after one year but within five years 42,468 68,783
76,334 103,633

The Group leases certain of its buildings under operating leases. The leases typically run for one to five years.
None of the leases include contingent rentals.

(ii) Aslessee
At 31 December 2012, the Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

Leases on premises expiring
— within one year 359,153 247,068
— after one year but within five years 1,096,707 770,097
— after five years 1,747,738 1,130,728
3,203,598 2,147,893

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office premises and cinemas held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for one to twenty years.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases are subject to contingent rent payments, which are charged at 3% to
28% (2011: 3% to 28%) of their monthly or annual gross box office takings in excess of the base rents as set
out in the respective lease agreements. In addition, 10% of the theatre confectionary sales and advertising
income are also charged as payments under certain leases.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2012, the Company had issued guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity amounting to HK$1,012,254,000 (2011:HK$778,921,000) and HK$31,700,000
(2011: HK$30,000,000) respectively. At 31 December 2012, banking facilities of HK$614,920,000 (2011: HK$459,285,000)
and HK$31,700,000 (2011: HK$30,000,000) had been utilised by the subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity respectively.

At 31 December 2012, the directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any of
the guarantees. The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of bank guarantees as their fair values
cannot be reliably measured and no transaction price was incurred.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of their respective businesses. Having
reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received, the directors are of the opinion that even if the
claims are found to be valid, there will be no material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.

BRAERRE (KE)BRAF
R 2012 121



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Office rental paid (i) 4,728 3,480
Service fee income from a jointly controlled entity (ii) 975 1,143
Consultancy fee income from jointly controlled entities (i) - 673
Income from leasing of cinema facilities (iv) 2,066 168
Grant of cinema management and operational rights income (v) - 7,440
Cinema in-foyer advertising income (vi) 1,056 482
Cinema screen advertising fee income (vii) 13,889 7,569
Cinema marketing service fee expense (viii) 1,026 362
Rental deposit and prepayment for leasing of property (ix) 51,170 -
Notes:
(i) This represents office rental expenses for three office areas paid to related companies, which are owned by Mr. Wu Kebo, a director and

a substantial shareholder of the Group. The rental expenses were charged on nominal commercial terms.

(ii) This represents service fees for ticketing system maintenance and enhancement received from a jointly controlled entity of the Group.
The fees were charged on normal commercial terms.

(iii) The consultancy fees were received from two jointly controlled entities of the Group charged on normal commercial terms.

(iv) This represents income received from a related company for leasing certain cinema facilities. The fee was charged on normal commercial
terms.

(v) Pursuant to a cinema management agreement dated 15 December 2011 with a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Kebo, the Group
recorded income of HK$7,440,000 from the grant of cinema management and operational rights in respect of a cinema in Beijing for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

The terms of the cinema management agreement were negotiated on normal commercial terms.

(vi) This represents the PRC cinemas in-foyer advertising income received from a subsidiary of Orange Sky, a substantial shareholder of the
Group. The fee was charged on normal commercial terms.

(vii)  This represents cinema screen advertising income received from two subsidiaries of Orange Sky for granting exclusive rights for screen
advertising air-time in the Group’s Hong Kong and PRC cinemas. The fees were charged on normal commercial terms.

(viii)  This represents marketing service fee paid to two related companies for providing promotional service for the PRC cinemas. The fee was
charged on normal commercial terms.

(ix) This represents a rental deposit and prepayment paid to a related company, which is indirectly held by Mr. Wu Kebo. As at 31 December
2012, the Group had paid a rental deposit and rental prepayment of HK$1,849,500 and HK$49,320,000 respectively. The terms of the
rental agreement were negotiated on normal commercial terms.

The transactions shown in notes (i), (iv), (v), (vi), (vii), (viii) and (ix) above with the related companies constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The continuing connected transactions were either
properly approved by the independent shareholders or were constituted to be the de minimis transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section “Continuing connected
transactions” of the Report of the Directors.

None of the other related party transactions set out above constituted connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.
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Note 29 to the financial statements contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to financial risk
management. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Assessment of useful economic lives of fixed assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of fixed assets based on the periods over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The Group reviews annually their estimated useful lives, based on factors that include asset utilisation,
internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets tempered by
related industry benchmark information. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful
lives of fixed assets would increase depreciation charges and decrease non-current assets.

Assessment of impairment of assets

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. The Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount when any such indication exists. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. The
preparation of projected future cash flows involves the estimation of future revenue and operating costs which are
based on reasonable assumptions supported by information available to the Group. Changes in these estimates would
result in additional impairment provisions or reversal of impairment in future years.

Assessment of impairment of available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews available-for-sale securities at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required to determine whether a decline in the fair value of an
investment is significant or prolonged. In making this judgement, the Group considers a number of factors including
the historical data on market volatility, the price of the specific investment, industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuers of the investment.

Assessment of impairment of film rights

The Group reviews film rights ageing analysis at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount of film
rights is assessed with reference to a value-in-use calculation as at the end of the reporting period. The key assumptions
include the discount rate, budgeted gross margin and estimated turnover based on past practices, experience and
expectations in the film distribution and production industry. Changes in these estimates and assumptions would result
in additional impairment provision or reversal of impairment in future years.

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group performs impairment testing of goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2(m)(ii) to
the financial statements. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual
cash-generating units which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast operating performance and cash flows. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Cash flow
projections are prepared on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market conditions
and are discounted appropriately.

Deferred tax assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes at the end of each reporting period and reduces deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilised. However, there is no assurance that the Group will generate sufficient taxable
income to allow all or part of its deferred tax assets to be utilised.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of items of 1 July 2012
other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting financial 1 January 2013

assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and 1 January 2014
financial liabilities
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position, except HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements.

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint
ventures. Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by considering the structure, legal form, contractual
terms and other facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations under the arrangement. Joint arrangements
which are classified as joint operations under HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint
operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11 and are
required to be accounted for using the equity method. Proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed as an accounting
policy choice.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012 (CONTINUED)

The application of HKFRS 11 will change the Group’s accounting for its jointly controlled entities which are currently
accounted for using proportionate consolidation and the new policy will be adopted in accordance with the relevant transition
provisions. The expected financial effect on the consolidated statements of financial position as at 1 January 2012 and 31
December 2012 and the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2012, to be included as restated
comparative amounts in the Group’s 2013 annual financial statements, is as follows:

Estimated impact on the
financial position as at
1 January 2012

Estimated impact on the
financial position as at
31 December 2012

Retrospective Retrospective

As currently effect of Restated  As currently effect of Restated

reported change in balance reported change in balance

as at accounting as at asat  accounting as at

1 January policy in 1 January 31 December policy in 31 December

2012 2013 2012 2012 2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 1,552,976 (132,453) 1,420,523 1,861,889 (70,719) 1,791,170
Current assets 1,017,910 (133,922) 883,988 1,062,827 (200,795) 862,032
Current liabilities (636,354) 237,030 (399,324) (905,087) 242,947 (662,140)
Non-current liabilities (410,949) 26,602 (384,347) (375,018) 25,196 (349,822)
Net assets 1,523,583 (2,743) 1,520,840 1,644,611 (3,371) 1,641,240

Estimated impact on the results
for the year ended 31 December 2012

As currently Retrospective Restated

reported for the effect of  balance for the

year ended change in year ended

31 December accounting 31 December

2012 policy in 2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

Turnover 1,591,971 (794,059) 797,912
Gross profit 947,981 (470,857) 477,124
Share of profits of joint ventures — 105,371 105,371
Profit before taxation 98,737 (12,037) 86,700
Profit for the year 97,704 (1,477) 96,227
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35 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(@) Subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets or liabilities of

the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 2(c) to the financial statements and have been

consolidated into the Group financial statements.
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Group's

incorporation/ effective

Name of company operation Issued equity capital interest

I REREAZREEER DA PRC Registered capital 100%
RMB3,000,000

City Entertainment Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong 300,000,000 shares of 100%
HK$1 each
Gala Film Distribution Limited Hong Kong 49,990,000 shares of 100%

HK$1 each and 10,000
non-voting deferred
shares* of HK$1 each

Golden Harvest Cinemas Holding Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100%

Golden Harvest Entertainment British Virgin Islands 1,000 shares of US$1 each 100%
International Limited

Golden Harvest Films Distribution British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100%
Holding Limited

Golden Harvest (Marks) Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100%
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Cinemas PRC Registered capital 100%
(China) Company Limited"" RMB 450,000,000
Golden Harvest Treasury Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100%
Golden Screen Limited Hong Kong 8,750,000 shares of 100%
HK$1 each
Golden Sky Pacific Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100%
M Cinemas Company Limited Hong Kong 7,000,000 shares of 100%
HK$10 each
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100%
Entertainment Company Limited and 114,000,000

non-voting deferred
shares* of HK$1 each
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Principal activities

Investment, production
and distribution of
motion pictures and
acts as an advertising
agent

Investment Holding

Distribution of motion
pictures

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Holding of trademark

Theatre operation and
investment holding

Provision of finance to
group companies

Investment holding

Investment holding

Theatre operation

Investment holding
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35 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of Group's
incorporation/ effective
Name of company operation Issued equity capital interest  Principal activities
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion Hong Kong 94,000,000 shares of 100%  Film production and
Pictures Company Limited HK$1 each investment holding
Panasia Films Limited Hong Kong 23,000 shares of 100%  Distribution of motion
HK$1,000 each pictures and its related

audio visual products
and acts as an
advertising agent

Shanghai Golden Harvest Media PRC Registered capital 100%  Distribution of motion
Management Company Limited**" US$500,000 pictures

Except for Golden Harvest Entertainment International Limited, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

# For Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, the deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and carry the
right to receive on half of the surplus on a return of capital exceeding HK$1,000,000,000,000,000. Apart from the above, all
other deferred shares carry rights to dividends for any given financial year of the respective companies when the net profit
available for distribution exceeds HK$1,000,000,000. They also carry rights to receive one half of the surplus on a return of
capital of the respective companies exceeding HK$500,000,000,000. None of the deferred shares carry any rights to vote at

general meetings.
i The equity interest of the entity is held by PRC nationals on behalf of the Group.
o~ The Company is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the PRC law.

o Shanghai Golden Harvest Media Management Company Limited is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under the PRC
law.
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35 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Jointly controlled entities
The following list contains the particulars of jointly controlled entities, all of which are unlisted corporate entities, which
affected the results or assets of the Group:

Name of
jointly controlled entity

Dartina Development Limited
Golden Village Entertainment
(Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Golden Village Pictures Pte Ltd.

Golden Village Holding Pte Ltd.

Golden Village Multiplex Pte Ltd.

Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd.

Form of business
structure

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Place of

incorporation/

operation

Hong Kong

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Taiwan

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital

31,200,082 shares of
HK$1 each

11,000,000 shares of
S$1 each

2 shares of S$1 each
15,504,688 shares of
S$1 each

8,000,000 shares of
S$1 each

80,000,000 shares of
NTD10 each

1 28 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Group's
effective
interest

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

35.71%

Principal activity

Investment holding

Investment holding

Distribution of motion

pictures

Investment holding

Theatre operation

Theatre operation and
investment holding
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Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
BEXBRRREEE)BRLR

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBFREFMKLZ BRAA)

(Stock Code B&f3H5%: 1132)
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